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Highlights

Henderson Eurgpean Focus Trust plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2012 [ 1

30 Septembar 30 September Change
2012 2041 %
Shareholders’ funds
Net assets (£'000) 115,431 103,913 +11 1@
Net asset value {"NAV"} per ordinary share 682.2p 580 0p +176
Share price
Market capitalisation of ordinary shares in issue
(excluding treasury shares) {£'000) 100,124 88,488 +131
Middle market price 591 75p 493 88p +198
Average discount to NAV per share over the year® 137% 83%
Geanng
Actual gearing® 83% rul
Maximum gearing authorised by the Board 200% 15 0%
Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2012 201
Total return to equity shareholders {£'000)
Revenue return after taxation 2,998 3,51
Capital return after taxation 16,834 (13,261)
Total return after taxation 19,832 (9,750}
Total return per ordinary share'
Revenue 17 49p 18 29
Capital 98 18p (69 09)p
Total 11567p (50 80)p
Dmwidend per ordinary share 19 00p 17 75p
Ongoing charges®™ 116% 082%
Total return performance (including
dividends reinvested) to 30 September 2012 %
Net asset value per ordinary share 213
Ordinary share price 242
FTSE World Europe ex UK Index in sterling terms 126

(1) The Company s net assets were reduced duning the year by £5 232 000 which was used to repurchase 997 121 ordinary
shares to be held in treasury In broad terms, thes reduction mainly reflects the difference between the increase of 11 1%
n net assets and the increase of 17 6% in net asset value per ordinary share for the year ended 30 September 2012

(2) Discount calculated using ex-incomea NAV

(3) The methodology used to calculate geanng has been amended in ine wath a recommendation by the AIC

(4) Based on the weighted average number of shares in sssue dunng the year

(5) Ongoing charges have replaced 1otal expense ratios {see page 14 for more detalls) The Company s ongoing charges were
lower 1n the year ended 30 September 2011 mainly as a result of the management fee being wawved for three months
and shghtly higher than usual in 2012 mainly because of legal costs associated with the change i investment objective
Ongoing charges exclude performance fees 1f included the charge would have been 2 28% in the year (2011 0 82%)

Sources Henderson Global investors Limited, Datastream
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Chairman’s Statement

Rodney Denmis

Performance

Over the year ended 30 September 2012, the net asset value
(“NAV") per ordinary share total return was 21 3% and the
Benchmark Index, the FTSE World Europe ex UK Index in
sterling terrns, total return was 12 6% Over the same period
the share price rose 19 8% and the share prce total return
including dividends reinvested was 24 2% This performance
builds on the previous significant outperformance of the
portfolio against the Benchmark Index estabhshed by the
Manager over 2011, as can be seen in the chart on page 5
The Manager's performance against the peer group (the AIC
Europe sector) has also been good, with the Company being
third out of exght for NAV performance over cne year and
second over three, five and ten years

Revenue and dividend

The revenue return for the year ended 30 September 2012 was
17 49p per ordinary share, compared with 18 29p for the
previous year The Board has declared an interim dvidend, in lieu
of a final, of 19 00p per ordinary share, an increase of 7 0% on
the previous year The dwvidend will be paid on 31 December
2012 to shareholders on the register on 14 December 2012
Shareholders will note that the Board has decided to make a
modest contribution from the Company's substantial revenue
reserve to this year's dwdend The split of the Cornpany’s returns
between capital and revenue can vary from year to year and the
Board 15 using the revenue reserves to smooth the Company’s
dwvidend payments to assist a progressive dividend policy

Discount management policy

The Company has continued to use share buy-backs duning the
year ended 30 September 2012 with 997,121 ordinary shares
(5 6% of the shares in is5ue at the beginning of the reporting
pencd) being repurchased to be held in treasury at an average
discount of 13 1% and at a total cost of £5 2 milion Since 30
September 2012, the Company has not bought back any
further ordinary shares At 29 November 2012 the share price
discount to the ex-income NAV was 11 0%

Despite the Company having one of the better long-term
performance records in the sector, 1t has shrunk constderably
as a consequence of the Board trying to reduce the discount
In the last five years, since the tender offer in 2007, the
Company has bought back 52% of its 1ssued share capital
Consequently, the Board and Manager have tried to be more
pragmatic 1n applying buy-backs over the year under review
The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company's
discount management policy and hquidity in the Company’s
shares generally

Regulatory developments

The Board, 1ts adwsers and the Company’s Manager are
closely monitonng developments in relation to a key item of
regulation, The Alternative Investment Fund Managers
Directive, which 15 expected to be written into UK legislation
in 2013 and which may have an impact on the Company

Annual general meeting {“AGM”")

At the AGM on 25 January 2013, the Directors will again be
seeking to renew the authorities previously granted to allot
and to buy-back shares for cancellation or to be held in
treasury The passing of these resolutions will continue to
provide your Board with flexibility to add shareholder value
should the opportunity anse Shareholders are also being
asked to renew the authonty to call general meetings at short
notice Further details are prowided in a separate letter to
shareholders which includes the notice of AGM | hope you
will give these resolutions your full consideration and support

Outlook

In my statement last year | concluded by noting that the entry
price of an investment is a key determinant between success
and failure This was 1n recognition of the values to which,
amidst all the gloom, European equities had already fallen As
our Manager has noted on a number of occasions, 1t tends to
be dunng bad “macro” that the investor is offered good
bargains Thus, 1t 15 encouraging that our focus on stock and

3



4

Chairman’s Statement

continued

sector specific opporturities has enabled the Company to
record a year of strong progress

Unswerving attention to bottom up opportunities will need to
be just as sharp in the year ahead Ffor all the extraordinary
efforts of central bankers, 1t 1s clear that the world economy
remains fragile as 1t works its way through a long and painfu!
journey of deleveraging We simply cannot expect that a debt
binge, decades in the making, can be purged in a mere few
years Our working assumptions will therefore remain
unchanged we anticipate that the development of world GDP
will be both volatile and at a slower speed than during the
lengthy period of growth leading up to the 2007/2008 crisis

While politicians grapple to deal with the situation, the
corporate world 1s in a reahstic frame of mind and in a healthy
condition Indeed, this contrast 1s no sharper than in Europe
the existential crisis in the Eurozone 15 the headline grabber,
but corporate Europe ploughs on 1in a world where the strong
are getting stronger This 1s highlighted by developments in
the bond market where blue chip companies are taking
advantage of today's exceptionally low interest rates as they

Henderson European Focus Trust plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2012

refinance through corporate bonds This has the effect of
lowering their cost of capital, to the benefit of equity investors
such as oursetves It seems only a matter of time before
investors become alert to the fact that the equity in such
companies at divwdend yields of 3% and greater offers a more
attractive route to rewards than 5 year corporate bonds
yielding less than 1% All the more so when all of the
optionality rests in the equity

For the investor, then, afl of this means that the so called Old
Conuinent offers outstanding, global businesses often trading
at a discount to non-European peers All crises pass and so
will this one As it does so, Europe’s corporate strength in
depth 15 likely to be recognised not [ust by bond markets but
by hitherto nervous equity mvestors

Rodney Dennis
Charrman
5 December 2012
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Historical Performance

Ten year record

Net asset Net asset
value per value per Mid-market Revenue
orchnary share  ordinary share pnce per Dindend per relurn per Total return
Net assets (basic) (diluted)"™ ordinary share share share per share
(£ 000) P P ] P P p
30 September 2002 147,930 2635 2587 22750 300 ER| (80 96)
30 September 2003 180,482 3215 3103 25875 300 345 6093
30 September 2004 210,877 3520 31200 435 479 45 45
30 Septernber 2005% 279,605 4704 421 00 600 746 118 23
30 September 2006 322,093 5554 538 00 1200 878 96 35
30 September 2007 219,515 667 8 632 50 800 712 124 53
30 September 2008% 161,739 5513 505 50 1400 1512 (108 73)
30 September 2009 176,766 6570 61300 1400 1563 11055
30 September 2010 144,945 6459 58550 1650 1569 637
30 September 2011 103,913 5800 493 88 1775 18 29 (50 80)
30 September 2012 115,431 6822 581,75 1900 17.49 11567
(1} The warrants were repurchased for canceltation in January 2004 and so no diluted net asset value 1s stated after that time
(2) Net assets and net asset value restated m 2005 1o include investments at bid pnces Al subsequent years have been calculated using bid pnces
(3} Revenue return includes 1 45p per ordinary share in respect of VAT recovery on past management fees
Total return performance 1 year 3 years 5 years 10 years
(with dividends reinvested) % % % %
Net asset value per ordinary share 213 120 127 2085
Ordinary share price 2472 50 57 2135
FTSE World Europe ex UK Index in sterling terms 126 -12 76 1518
Maximum gearning levels as a percentage of net assets
2008 47%
2009 58%
2010 9 4%
2011 62%
2012 127%

Total return performance 10 years to 30 September 2012

(rebased to 100)

World Europe ex UK Index

Annual net asset value performance relative to FTSE

Sources Henderson Global Investors Limited Datastream
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Portfolio Manager’s Report

John Bennett

Economic and market background

As well as analysing the fundamentals of businesses,
European equity managers have neaded to sharpen their skills
and thicken their skins in dealing with market schizophrenia in
the past year Europe's geopolitical drama - blending Greek
tragedy with Faust, at least in the eyes of Germany's finance
munister — now has a famibar scnpt we move two steps
forward and one back The progressive work is undertaken by
the European Central Bank only for politicians to do their best
to do therr warst Nevertheless we do believe that Europe 15
slowly working its way to a solution to this crisis Key to this 1s
that markets have faith that Europe’s central bank will fulfil
that most basic of pre-requisites lender of last resort

Investment strategy

Never has the need to divorce “macro” from “micro” been
more important than in the year under review Perhaps one
of the most basic mistakes in investment 1s to commit to a
position based on headlines This 1s a clear enough danger for
those of us treated to the dally diet of noise courtesy of the
stockbroking industry Yet any investor considering Europe
has faced just such a predicament in the past year Headiines
alone would have encouraged most to stay in bed rather than
invest in anything near a European bourse And yet, as
markets so often do, Europe’s equities have confounded the
gloomy consensus of only a year age

It 15 with this sense of contraran opportunity that we have
continued to guide the portfolio Investars in the Company
will be famihar with our favoured sector, pharmaceuticals 1t
Is noticeable that three of our top five holdings one year ago
were pharmaceutical stocks Today, those same names remain
in our top five holdings Headline nisk is a big feature of this
industry, subject as it is to the vagaries of drug fallures,
austenty measures and the famous patent chff Yet, such
headlines are old, not new, news

It 1s the Portfolio Manager's job to dig beneath the headlines
In so doing, we reveal that this industry 1s transforming itself
It does this by diversifying into more sustanable, more
predictable revenue streams, 1n areas such as amimal health,
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vaccines, consumer health products, genenc medicines and
nutritton Geographic expansion has also featured strongly
Sanofi for example today sells more in emerging markets than
it does 1in western Europe The company 1s thereby a
microcosm of the very case for Europe a growing, global
business which just happens to have been born in Europe
Moreover, Just as investors give up on the research pipelines
of these businesses, they are Iikely to confound by doing the
unexpected they will find new drugs At current valuations,
this latter prospect 1s hardly in the price

Our decision to establish pharmaceuticals as our biggest
sector theme was taken some eighteen months ago and the
industry now represents 25 6% of the portfolio Qur
conviction that the sector stands to undergo a major upward
re-rating has only grown One further factor has emerged to
strengthen that conviction The investment world faces two
major scarcities, or, put another way, It craves two certainties
growth and income Whilst craving the former risks pushing
so called growth stocks to unworthy multiples,
pharmaceuticals will, in our view, come to be seen as offenng
the best of both worlds growth at a value price as well as
outstanding yield characterstics Having re-rated food, drinks
and tobacco stocks over the past decade the market, we
believe, 1s beginming a simifarly durable process with drug
stocks

Investment activity

The key sector themes driving our portfolio remained in place
throughout the year As weil as pharmaceuticals, we retaned
our overweight position in technology where our favoured
names remain SAP, Dassault Systemes and ASML

Our key underweights have remained financials, utifities and
telecoms The latter two industries represent the side of
Europe we consider vulnerable Ther assets are largely
stranded in Europe, serve a European chent base and require
heavy investment So, while ther dwdend yields may look
hugh, we consider those dividends to be vulnerable to an
ongoing cash squeeze Telecoms i particular look destined
for margin compression
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Portfolio Manager’s Report

continued

We have been active 1n small and mid cap stocks through the
year Europe offers a deep and wide pool of mid caps and, as
a closed end investment vehicle, the Company 15 1n a prime
position to capitahse Indeed, thus was a key aspect of our
refining the investment policy at last year's general meeting

Small and mid cap positions established during the year
included Tessenderlo Chemie in Belgium, Germany's
Compugroup Medical and two Norwegian oil services
businesses, Fred Olsen Energy and Prosafe Each investment
case 15 different Compugroup 15 a medical software company
enjoying a high proportion of recurning revenue, while Olsen
and Prosafe are benefiting from strong actvity in areas such
as the North Sea Olsen also benefits from an excellent
dmadend yeld

Tessenderlo 15 a restructuning case whose management we
have known for some time We are 1n regular dialogue with
the company as we encourage them to press on with
divestments 1n order to bning greater focus to the business
We are paid a healthy dwvidend of some 5% while we wait

Since the year end a further small cap position has been
established EVS in Belgium s a technology provider to
broadcasters and studios for the production cf live and near-
live sports programmes Also known to us for some time, the
company 1s a technology leader whose management pays out
the bulk of free cash flow to shareholders Thus we can
anticipate a dividend yield of 5% or more from this growth
business

In his statement the Charman touches upon the difference
between the in vogue corporate bond market and shunned
equities This really I1s a situation we do not expect to last The
charts show the yield on European Triple B and Single A
corporate bond yields As can be seen BBB yields are now
below 3% while the yield on Single A has sunk below 2%
This, 1n our view, demonstrates amply that the dash to safety 1s
now in a full blown stampede While not quite trampled
underfoot, European equities have clearly been the other side
of the trade This 1s precisely where we see the opportunity

One final example, we feel, encapsulates the situation we
need to go back nearly 500 years to get Dutch sovereign
bond yields as low as they have been recently Yet, consider
Reed Elsevier We own the {Dutch hsted) shares These shares
give the investor access to the company’s burgeoning cash
flows and resultant dividend stream That cash flow will grow,
as will the dividend Neither the Dutch government nor a

European Single A corporate bond yields over the
five years to 12 November 2012

European Triple B corporate bond yields over the
five years to 12 November 2012

corporate bond will grow its coupon Nor will either gwe the
investor access to the optionalty of a business, let alone any
protection against mflation

Such i1s the opportunity presented to the long-term investor by
today’s shunned but attractve European equities

Personal holding

| have continued to increase my investment in the Company's
shares throughout the year and, at the time of wnting, my
helding had nisen to 116,419 shares, representing 0 7% of
the issued share capital

John Bennett
Henderson Global Investors Limited
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Investment Portfolio

as at 30 September 2012

Valuation % of portfolio
Company Sector Country of listing £o000 investments
Novartis Pharmaceuticals & biotechnology Switzertand 10,218 8i
Sanof Pharmaceuticals & brotechnology France 9,370 74
Roche Pharmaceuticals & biotechnology Switzerland 8,133 64
fleed Elsewvier Media Netherlands 5,367 412
BIC Household goods France 5,122 40
Nestlé Food producers Switzerland 4,933 39
SAP Software & computer services Germany 4,855 38
Bayer Chemtcals Germany 4,340 34
Henkel Household goods Germany 3,538 28
Dassault Systemes Software & computer services France 3,486 28
10 largest 59,362 46 8
Novo Nordisk Pharmaceuticals & biotechnology Denmark 3,337 25
Valeo Automobiles & parts France 2,873 23
Fuchs Petrolub Chemicals Germany 2,837 22
Fred Olsen Energy Od equipment & services Norway 2,747 22
Akzo Nobel Chericals Netherlands 2,738 22
Total Ci & gas producers France 2,137 17
Sampo Non-iife insurance Finland 1,877 15
BNP Panbas Banks France 1,779 14
Kone industrial engmeenng Finland 1,757 14
uBs Banks Switzerland 1.656 13
20 largest 83,100 655
Fresenius Health care equipment & services Germany 1,588 12
Prosafe O equipment & services Norway 1,541 12
Unilever Food producers Netherlands 1,523 12
Besersdorf Personal goods Germany 1,514 12
Legrand Promesses Electronic & electrical equipment France 1,503 12
AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals & biotechnology Sweden 1,501 12
Gerresheimer Health care equipment & services Germany 1,492 12
ING Life insurance Netherlands 1,477 12
Deutsche Post Industrial transportation Germany 1,456 12
Valvo Industrial engineening Sweden 1,441 11
30 largest 98,136 774
ENE Oil & gas producers Itaty 1,432 i1
Electrolux Household goods Sweden 1,405 t1
Allianz Non-irfe insurance Germany 1,375 11
SGS Survelllance Support services Switzerland 1360 11
Compugroup Medical Software & computer services Germany 1,356 11
Orkla General industrials Norway 1353 i1
Axa Non-life insurance France 1,336 i1
SHB Banks Sweden 1,309 10
ASML Technology hardware & equipment Netherlands 1,231 10
Contnental Automobiles & parts Germany 1,222 10
40 largest 111,515 881
Muenchener Rueckver Non-life insurance Germany 1,199 i0
Aryzta Food producers Switzerland 1,185 10
Sonova Holding Health care equipment & services Switzerland 1,181 09
DSM Chemucals Netherlands 1,171 09
Wartsila Corporation Industrial engineering finland 1,170 09
Tessenderlo Chermie Chemucals Belgium 1,165 09
Zurnich Insurance Naon-life insurance Switzerland 1,165 09
Elekta Health care equipment & services Sweden 1,151 09
Rexel Electroruc & electrical equipment France 1,149 09
Ziggo fixed ne telecommunications Netherlands 1,143 09
Saipem Or equipment & services italy 1141 09
BMW Automobiles & parts Germany 1,101 09
Credit Susse Banks Switzerland 1,095 09
Total listed equity investments at fair value 126,531 1000

All secunties are equity investments
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Portfolio Analysis

Country analysis

Valuation at
Valuation at 30 September
30 September Net Appreciation/ 2012

2011 transactions {depreciation} % of net

£ 000 % £'000 £'000 £000 assets

Belgium 1,108 11 (74) 131 1,165 1.0
Denmark 2,449 24 (194) 1,083 3,338 29
Finland 2,953 28 2,041 {190y 4,804 42
France 22,656 217 1,980 4,119 28,755 249
Germany 20,957 201 417 6,500 27,874 241
Ireland 1,430 14 (1,582) 152 - -
ltaly 2,588 25 (1,311} 1,296 2,573 22
Luxembourg - - 103 {(103) - -
Netherfands 9,284 89 3,671 1,694 14,649 127
Norway - - 5,456 185 5,641 49
Spain 3,387 33 (3,395} 8 - -
Sweden 8,681 84 (2,724} 250 6,807 59
Switzerland 23,538 227 5.557 1,830 30,925 268
Total investments 99,031 953 9,945 17,555 126,531 109.6
Net current assetsAliabilities) 4,882 47 (15,982} - (11,100} {9.6)
Net assets 103,913 1000 {6,037) 17,555 115,431 1000

Attnbutable to equity

shareholders’ funds 103,913 1000 (5,232)» 16,7507 115431 1000

(1} Represents the cost of 997,121 ordinary shares repurchased dunng the year (2) Comprises the total return less the cost of dwdends paid duning the year

Sector analysis

Vatuation at
30 September
Swiss Swedish  Norwegian Danish us 2012
Euros francs krona kroner kroner dollars Sterling % of nat
£°000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 assets
Oil & gas 4,710 - - 4,288 - - - 8,998 78
Basic matenals 12,251 - - - - - - 12,251 10.6
Industnals 7,035 1,360 1,441 1,353 - - - 11,189 97
Consumer goods 16,893 6,118 1,405 - - - - 24,416 21.2
Health care 12,450 19,532 2,651 - 3,338 - - 37,91 328
Consumer services 5.367 - - - - - - 5,367 4.6
Telecommurications 1,143 - - - - - - 1,143 1.0
Financials 9,044 3,915 1,309 - - - - 14,268 124
Technology 10,928 - - - - - - 10,928 95
Total investments 79,821 30,925 6,806 5,641 3,338 - - 126,531 109.6
Net current
(habihtiesyassets {15,244) 1,813 {1,486) - - 38 3,779  (11,100) (9 6)

Net assets 64,577 32,738 5,320 5,641 3,338 38 3,779 115,431 1000
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Portfolio Weightings

Country weightings of the portfolio investments as at 30 September 2012

oig Basi Cornsumet Heatth  Consurner Portfolic  Benchmark
gas  maenak  Industnals goods care seaces  Telecoms Utibes  Fnancak  Techndogy — wwestments et
% % % % % % % % % % % %
Austria - - - - - - - - - - - 07
Belgium - 09 - - - - - - - - 09 25
Czech Repubhic - - - - - - - - - - - 03
Denmark - - - - 26 - - - - - 26 29
Finland - - 23 ~ - - - - 75 - 38 17
France 17 - 21 64 74 - - - 25 28 229 215
Germany - 57 12 58 24 - - - 20 49 220 180
Greece - - - - - - - - - - - 02
Hungary - - - - - - - - - - - 03
Ireland - - - - - - - - - - - 04
Italy 20 - - - - - - - - - 20 53
Luxembourg - - - - - - - - - - - 04
Netherlands - 3t - 12 - 42 0% - 12 10 i16 63
Nornway 34 - i1 - - - - - - - 45 25
Poland - - - - - - - - - - - 10
Portugal - - - - - - - - - - - 04
Sweden - - 11 11 21 - - - 10 - 53 73
Spain - - - - - - - - - - - 66
Switzerland - - 11 48 154 - - - 31 - 244 194
Turkey - - - - - - - - - - - 13
Total 71 97 8.9 193 299 42 09 - 113 87 1000
Benchmark
Index® 70 85 144 188 126 51 48 48 206 34 1000

(1) FTSE World Europe ex UK Index i sterling terms Source Henderson Global Investors Limited

Country underweights/
overweights at 30 September 2012 Sector underwaights/overweights as at 30 September 2012
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Directors

Rodney Dennis (Charrman of the Board and of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Management Engagement Committees)

Runs an investment and pensions consulting business He was
formerly deputy chief executive of the Prince’s Trust, prior to
which he held a number of serior positions at Prudential
Portfolio Managers Limited He was appointed to the Board on
11 November 2003 and as Chairman on 14 September 2006

Jean Claude Banon

Retired in June 2011 from Veoha Environnement SA where he
was for many years CEQ of some of the group’s operations in
the UK, then representative of the group within the EU
institutions in Brussels He 1s now developing corporate
adwisory services He joined the Board on 18 March 1991

All Directors are independent of the Manager

Alexander Comba (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Senior Independent Director}

Is a chartered accountant He has been group finance director
of Vina PLC, one of the UK's leading construction groups,
since 1993 He joined the Board on 11 November 2003

Michael Firth

Is a non-executive director of Network Rail Limited and
Communmsis plc He was previously a non-executive director of
Somerfield plc and First Technology PLC having previgusly
been head of corporate banking at HSBC Bank plc He joined
the Board on 17 November 2006

All Directors are members of the Audit, Nommation, Remuneration and Management Engagement Commuittees

Management

Henderson Global Investors Limited (“Henderson”) (which 15 authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authonty) and
its subsidianes undertake management, administration and company secretanal services

The day-to-day management of the Company’s portfolio 1s carned out by an award winming team led by John Bennett

John Bennett is a director of European equities at Henderson He joined Gartmore in 2010, the Company's previous Manager,
after spending 17 years at GAM and has over 20 years' expenence of managing Continental and Pan European equities He
qualified in 1986 as a member of the Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland

Debbie Fish ACIS acts as Secretary on behalf of Henderson Secretarial Services Limited
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited financial statements of the
Company and thew report for the year from 1 October 2011
to 30 Septernber 2012

Business Review

The following Business Review 1s designed to prowvide
information primanly about the Company’s busness and
results for the year ended 30 September 2012 The Business
Review should be read in conjunction with the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 3 and 4 and the Portfolic Manager's
Report on pages 6 and 7, which give a review of the
investment actvities for the year and an outlook for the
future

a) Status

The Company {registered (in England & Wales on 20 January
1947 with company registration number 427958) traded
throughout the year under review and was not dormant The
Company I1s an investment company as defined in Section 833
of the Companies Act 2006 ("the Act”) and operates as an
investment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 (“Section 1158”), 1s subject to the
UK Listtng Authority's Listing Rules and 1s governed by its
articles of association, amendments to which must be
approved by shareholders by way of a special resolution The
Company 1s not a close company

For the year ended 30 Septernber 2012, and in previous years,
the Company was required to seek approval from HM
Revenue & Customs {"HMRC") of its status as an mvestment
trust under Section 1158 every year HMRC approval of the
Company’s status as an investment trust has been received in
respect of the year ended 30 September 2011, although this
approval 1s subject to there being no subsequent enquiries
under corporation tax self assessment The Directors are of
the opinion that the Company has continued to conduct its
affairs in a manner that will enable 1t to gain such approval
for the year ended 30 September 2012 For years beginning
on or after 1 October 2012 approval will be by way of a one-
off application in advance and the Company intends to
conduct its affairs in order to maintain investment trust status
The Company 1s hable to corporation tax on its net revenue
profits but 1s exempt from corporation tax on capital gains if it
has complied at all times with Section 1158

b} investment objective and policy

Investment Objective

The Company seeks to maximise total return from a focused
portfolio of bsted Continental European stocks

Investment Policy

Asset aflocation

The portfolio 1s unconstrained by benchmark and contamns
between 50 to 60 holdings at any cne time While awareness
of benchmark constituents and sector weightings inform
portfolio construction, actual weightings of stocks held in the
Company’s portfolio are based upon the Manager's view of
their total return prospects rather than their weighting in the
benchmark, therefore the stock weighting In the portfolio can
be matenally higher or lower than the benchmark weighting
The aim 1s to seek out inflection points at both stock and sector
level where growth can be purchased at a reascnable price
Less emphasis 1s given 1o geographical diversification The
portfolio 1s not constructed with a yield target Dervative
instruments (such as futures and options) may be used for
investrent purposes for up to 10% of net assets

The portfolio has a bias to larger capitalised companies but
may be invested in the equity of mid and smaller capitalised
companies The exposure to smailer capitalised stocks 15
limited to 10% of net asset value ("NAV") Smaller capitalised
companies are considered by the Manager to be those with a
market capitalisation of less than el billion at the time of
investment

Risk diversification

The Company is invested in a diversified portfolio of investments
containing between 50 to 60 stocks, with a maxmum single
stock weighting of 10% of NAV of the portfolio at the time of
investment Stocks weighted at 5% of the portfolio or more are
not expected to exceed 40% of NAV n aggregate and the
typical minimum stock weight 1s 1% of NAV

Gearing

The Company has the power to borrow and does so on a
tactical basis when the Manager 15 confident that market
conditions and opporturities exist to enhance investrment
returns by using gearing The Manager has discretion to
borrow within irmits set by the Board from time to time but
gearing will not exceed 20% of net assets at the time the
borrowing 15 assumed
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The Company’s Benchmark Index i1s the FTSE World Europe
ex UK Index (sterling total return)

¢) Finanaal review and dividend

® Assets

The Company's net assets at 30 September 2012 amounted
to £115,431,000 compared with £103,913,000 at

30 September 2011

¢ /ncome
The total return for the year was £19,832,000 {2011 negative
return of £9,750,000)

The Company made a net revenue surplus in the year, after
expenses and taxation of £2,998,000 (2011 £3,511,000)

& Diidend

The Drrectors have declared an intenm dwidend, in lieu of
final, of 19 00p per ordinary share which will be paid on
31 Decemnber 2012 to shareholders on the register on

14 December 2012

d) Share capital and shareholders

# Share capital

As at 30 September 2012 the Company’s paid up share
capital consisted of 18,204,149 ordinary shares of 50p each,
16,919,919 shares with full voting rights and 1,284,230
shares held in treasury All ordinary shares rank equally for
dividends and distributions and carry one vote each There are
no restrictions concerring the transfer of secunties in the
Company, no special nghts with regard to control attached to
securities, no agreements between holders of securities
regarding their transfer known to the Company and no
agreement which the Company 1s party to that affects its
control following a takeover id To the extent that they exst,
the revenue profits of the Company (including accumulated
revenue reserves) are available for distnbution by way of
dividends to the holders of the ordinary shares Upon a
winding-up, after meeting the habilities of the Company, the
surplus assets would be distnbuted to shareholders pro rata to
their holding of ordinary shares

Subject to annual shareholder approval, the Company may
purchase Its own shares at a discount to NAV per share At
the annual general meeting ("AGM") in lanuary 2012
shareholders gave the Board authonty to buy back 2,572,775
ordinary shares dunng the following 15 months for
cancellation or to be held in treasury Durning the year ended
30 September 2012 the Company repurchased 997,121

ordinary shares (equal to 5 6% of the issued share capital as
at 1 October 2011) Since the end of the year to the date of
this report the Company has repurchased no further shares

® Holdings 1n the Company’s shares

Declarations of interests in the voting nghts of the Company
as at 30 September 2012 in accordance wath DTRS were as
follows

Voting rnights at

30 September 2012
Percentage of
voting nghts

Investec Wealth & Investment Limited 111

+ At 30 September 2012 the Company had 16,919 919 ordinary shares in 1ssue
with a total of 16 919 919 voung nghts There were 1,284 230 shares held in
treasury at that date with no voting nights At 30 Novernber 2012 there were
16,919,919 ordinary shares in issue with a total of 16,919,919 voting nghts
1 284 230 shares were held in treasury at that date

* The percentage ts calculated by applying the latest holding disclosure to the
Company to the aggregate vouing aghts in respect of the ssued ordinary
share capial

In the pericd from 1 Cctober 2012 to 30 November 2012 no
disclosures of voting nghts have been receved by the Company

The Board s aware that, as at 30 September 2012, 7 6% of
the 1ssued ordinary shares were held on behalf of participants
in Halifax Share Cealing products The participants in these
schemes are given the opportunity to instruct the refevant
nominee company to exercise the voting rights appertaining to
therr shares in respect of all general meetings of the Company
The nominee company has stated that it will exercise the
vating nghts of any shares held through the scheme that have
not been exercised by the individual participants They will do
so by voting for or against all resolutions to be put at alf
general meetings of the Company (or by withhclding votes on
such resolutions) pro rata to the aggregate voting instructions
for each resclution receved from those participants who have
chosen to exercise their voting rights

e) Borrowing

The Manager 1s authonised to gear the portfolio through the
use of flexible borrowing faciities, details of which are
provided 1n note 14 to the accounts The Board moritors the
level of gearing regularly and has a policy that geanng shall
not exceed 20% of the value of net assets Borrowing fevels
are also restncted by financial covenants Dunng the year,
gearing ranged from between nil {with a net cash holding of
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6 8%) and 12 7% of net assets At 30 September 2012
gearing was 8 3% (2011 nil, wath a net cash holding of
4 0%)

Geanng/net cash levels as a percentage of net assets
over the year to 30 September 2012

f) Going concern

Hawing considered the Company's investment objective, the
nature and quidity of the Company’s investment portfohio
and income and expenditure projections, the Directors believe
it 1s appropriate for the Company to continue to prepare Its
accounts on a going concern basis The assets of the
Company consist almeost entirely of securities that are reachly
realisable and the value of the Company's assets 1s greater
than its habities Accordingly, the Company has adequate
financial resources to continue In operational existence for the
foreseeable future

g) Performance measurement and key performance
indicators

In order to measure the success of the Company in meeting

1ts objectives the Directors take into account the following key

performance indicators

® The movement of the NAV per ordinary share compared with
the movement of the FTSE World Europe ex UK Index in
sterling terms on a total return basis {"the Benchmark Index™)
This 1s reflected in the performance-related fee which may be
payable to the Manager based on the degree to which NAV
performance exceeds that of the Benchmark Index

Information on the Company's performance in the year under
review Is incfuded in the Chairman’s Statement on page 3 and
in the tables on page 1

® The Board also momtors the performance of the
Company‘s ordnary shares and, in particutar, the level of
discount at which the ordinary shares trade relative to the
NAV Qver the year to 30 September 2012, the middle-
market price of the Company’s ordinary shares increased
by 19 8% to 591 75p

Share price discount to NAV (compared with the AIC
Europe sector)

The Board has a pragmatic approach to share buy-backs
and keeps 1ts policy under review, monitoring hguidity in
the Company's shares and the level of discount in
companson 1o Its peers as well as the longer term trends
for discounts In the sector

o Additionally, the Board regularly reviews the costs of
runring the Corpany calculated using the AIC
methodology for ongoing charges The Company has
moved away from calculating a total expense ratio (“TER")
in line with a recommendation from the AIC 1n order to
ensure that the information provided in relation to
expenses I1s comparable with other investment companies
For the Company, the only difference in the calculation
method is a move away from using monthly net asset
values to using daily net asset values as the basis for the
calculaton The Company’s ongoing charges for the year
ended 30 September 2012 were 1 16% compared to
082% in 2011 Costs in 2011 were lower than usual,
mamly as a result of the management fee being waived for
three months, and hugher than usual in 2012, mainly
because of the legal costs associated with the change in
investrnent objective For comparnisen purposes, the TER in
2011 was also 0 82% Any performance fee payable is
excluded from the ongoing charges calculation For
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information, such charges including the performance fee
were 2 28% n the year (2011 no performance fee
impact)

Information on how the Company has performed over the
longer term 1s included on page 5

h) Management arrangements and related party
transactions

Henderson Global investors Limited (“Henderson”) (which 15
authonsed and regulated by the Financial Services Authonty)
provides investment management services in accordance wath
an investment management agreement dated 25 November
2011, whch 5 terminable on six months’ notice by either party

Henderson receives a management fee of 0 75% per annum,
calculated monthly in arrears on the value of the Company's
net assets An additional management fee based on
performance 1s payable f the Manager meets certain targets
for the year

The performance fee 15 charged when the NAV percentage
increase over the year i1s greater than the percentage increase in
the Benchmark Index in sterhng and on total return terms, plus
a hurdle of 1% The Manager is entitled to 15% of the NAV
outperformance of the Benchmark Index above the hurdle
(excluding the effect of share buy-backs), subject to the
maximum amount payable 1n any one year in respect of the
management fee and the performance fee being 1 75% of net
assets at the year end

Underperformance 1s carmed forward and must be made up
before any further performance fee can be paid Any excess
performance 15 carried forward and can be set against
vnderperformance but not used to earn or enhance a
performance fee payment

Each annual performance related fee 15 calculated based on
the retevant figures for the financial year as audited and
published in the relevant annual report A performance
related fee of £1,211,000 was payable in respect of the year
ended 30 September 2012 (2011 mi)

Henderson and its subsidianies prowide accounting, company
secretanal and general administrative services under the terms
of the investment management agreement There 15 no separate
charge for the provision of these services

Other than the relationship between the Company and its
Directors, the provision of services by Henderson 1s the only

’

related party arrangement currently in place Other than fees
payable by the Company in the ordinary course of business
there have been no matenal transactions waith this related party
affecting the financial position or performance of the Company
during the year under review

Details of the individuals at Henderson responsible for
managing the day-to-day operations of the Company are
given on page 11

During the year under review the Manager used certain
services which were provided by or paid for by vanous
brokers In return it placed business, which may have included
transactions relating to the Cornpany, with these brokers

Custody services are provided by HSBC Bank plc

1) Pnncipal nisks and uncertainties

The Board's policy on nsk management has not changed from
last year The Directors have put in place processes to identify
and manage significant risks to the Company, including
Iinternal controls to mintmise operational risks The Board, in
conjunction with the Audit Committee, regularly reviews the
system of internal controls These include controls to
safeguard the Company’s assets and shareholders’
investments A summary of the Company's approach to
internal controls and risk can be found in the Corporate
Governance Statement on pages 20 and 21

The Board has identified its key nsks as follows

® Market risk

The Company’s performance 1s dependent on the performance
of the companies and markets in which it invests and will also
be affected by the strength of currencies in the regions i
which it invests relative to sterling Investment nisk is spread by
holding a diversified portfolio of companies with strong balance
sheets and above average growth prospects A significant
proportion of the holdings in the Company's portfolio may not
be represented n the Benchmark Index An analysis of the
Company’s portfolio and geographical weightings compared to
the Benchmark Index is included on pages 9 and 10

® Gearing

The Manager has authority to use gearing up to a maximum
of 20% of the Company's net assets In the event of a
sigruficant or prolonged fall in equity markets gearing would
exacerbate the effect of the falling market on the Company’s
NAV and, consequently, its share price
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e Other financial risks

The Company mimimises the risk of a counterparty failing 1o
deliver securities or cash by dealing through organisations that
have undergone ngorous due diligence by the Manager

The Company holds its hquid funds, which are mostly
denominated in eurg, almost entirely in interest bearing bank
accounts in the UK or on short-term deposit This, together
with a portfolio which comprises mainly investments in large
and medium-sized companies histed on major equity markets,
mitigates the Company's exposure to liquidity risk

The majority of the Company’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in currencies other than sterling No hedging of
the currency exposure is currently undertaken Consequently,
exchange rate fluctuations have the potential to reduce or
enhance returns for sterling based investors Exposure to
currencies as at 30 September 2012 15 shown below

The Board receives regular reports on the Company's
compliance with Section 1158, the UKLA Listing Rules and
other regulations

Other principal nisks associated wath the Company’s financial
instruments and policies for managing these nsks are given in
note 15 to the accounts

1} Payment of suppliers

The Company's principal supplher Is its Manager, the payment
terms for which are set out above and i note 5 1o the
accounts In relation to other suppliers, 1t is the payment policy
of the Company to obtain the best possible terms for all
business and, therefore, there 1s no single policy as to the
terms used In general the Company agrees with its suppliers
the terms on which business will take place and it 1s the

Company’'s policy to abide by such terms All creditors are
settled on the due date for payment

Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held on Friday 25 January 2013 at230pm
at the Company's registered office Separate resolutions wall
be proposed for each substantive issue The notice and details
of the resolutions to be put at the AGM are contamned in a
separate letter being sent to shareholders with this report

Directors’ Statement as to Disclosure of Information

to Audntors

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of
approving this report are listed on page 11 Each of those
Directors confirms that

® to the best of their knowledge and belief, there is no
infarmation relevant to the preparation of their report of
which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

® they have taken all the steps a dwector mught reasonably
be expected to have taken to be aware of relevant audit
informatton and to establish that the Company's auditors
are aware of that information

Corporate Governance Statement

a) Applicable corporate governance codes

The Board Is accountable to shareholders for the governance
of the Company's affars The Company 15 committed to
maintating high standards of corporate governance and the
Board has considered the principles and recommendations of
the AIC Code of Corporate Governance ("the AIC Code”) by
reference to the AIC Corporate Governance Guide for
Investment Companies (“the AIC Guide”) 1ssued in October
2010 The AIC Code addresses all the principles set out in the
UK Corporate Governance Code (“the UK Code”) as well as
setting out additional principles and recommendations on
issues that are of specific relevance to the Company The
Board beheves that reporting agamnst the AIC Code will provide
the most appropniate information to shareholders

The Financial Reporting Council {“the FRC™) confirmed on

30 September 2010 that it remained the view of the FRC that
by following the AIC Guide boards of investment companies
should fully meet thewr obhigations in relatton to the UK Code
and paragraph 9 8 6 of the Listing Rules
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Copies of the AIC Code, the AIC Guide and the UK Code
can be found on the respective arganisations’ websites
www theaic co uk and www frc org uk

b) Statement of compliance

The Board belteves that the Company has complied with the
recommendations of the AIC Code that are applicable to
smaller companies (those below the FTSE 350) dunng the year
under review and up to the date of this report and therefore
the provisions of the UK Code that are relevant to the
Company, except as set out below or elsewhere in the
Corporate Governance Statement

The UK Code includes provisions relating to
* the role of the chief executive,
e executive directors” remuneration, and

¢ the need for an internal audit function

For the reasons set out 1n the AIC Guide, and as explained in
the UK Code, the Board considers these provisions are not
relevant to the Company as an externally managed investment
company The Company has therefore not reported further in
respect of these provisions

¢) Directors

& Board composition

The Board consists of four non-executwe Drrectors and the
biographies of those holding office at the date of this report,
which are set out on page 11, demonstrate the breadth of
investment, commercial and professional experience relevant to
their positrons as Directors All Directors served through the year

The Board has set, and each Director has agreed to adopt,
genenc terms and conditions of appointment of non-executive
Directors of the Company, a copy of which 1s avalable for
inspection at the Company’s registered office during normal
business hours and at the Company’s AGM and 1s avallable on
the website www hendersoneuropeanfocus com

& Directors’ appointment and retirement

The appointment of new Directors 15 constdered by the
Nomination Commuttee, which makes recommendations to
the Board The Board may appoint Directors to the Board and
any Director so appointed must stand for election by the
sharehalders at the AGM following appointment, in
accordance with the articles of association

All Directors are appointed for an imitial term of three years
The articles of association require each Director to retire and
subrmit themselves for re-election at least every three years
In hne wath these requirements Michael Firth will stand for
re-election at the AGM

In accordance with the requirements of the UK Code, Rodney
Dennis, Jean Claude Banon and Alexander Comba, who have
served as Directors for more than mine years, will also stand for
re-election at the AGM

The Board confirms that, hawing conducted a formal
performance evaluation, as explamed on page 20, each of the
Directors seeking re-election continue to demanstrate ther
commitment to the Company and to perform their roles
effectively and recommends that you vote in favour of each of
the relevant resolutions being put to the AGM

e Directors’ independenice

All Directors have a wide range of other interests and are not
dependent on the Company itself At the Nomination
Commuittee meeting in September 2012, the Directors
reviewed therr independence and confirmed that all Directors
remain wholly independent of the Manager Rodney Dennis,
Jean Claude Banon and Alexander Comba have served on
the Board for more than nine years In line with the AIC
Code, the Board believes that length of service does not
diminish the contribution from a Director as expertence and
knowledge of the Company 15 a positive factor and should
not impact a Director’s independence The Board has
determined that all Directors are independent in character
and judgement and that ther individual skills, broad business
experience and high degree of knowledge and
understanding of the Company are of great benefit to
shareholders However, with three of the Company's
Directors having served nine or more years the Board 1s
developing an active plan for succession Alexander Comba 1s
appoimnted as Senior Independent Director

There were no contracts subsisting during or at the end of the
year tn which a Director of the Company 1s or was matenally
interested and which is or was significant in relation to the
Company's business No Director has a contract of service
with the Company and there are no agreements between the
Company and 1ts Directors concerning compensation for loss
of office
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e Directors’ remuneration and shareholdings
The Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 24 prowdes
information on the remuneration of the Directors

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares
of the Company are shown n the table that follows

Directors’ interests

30 September 30 September

2012 201

Rodney Dennis - -
Jean Claude Banan - -
Alexander Comba 5,000 5,000
Michael Firth - -

Since the year end Rodney Dennis purchased 7,515 shares
There have been no other changes in any of the Directors’
interests in shares detalled above since the Company's year
end No Director held any interest, beneficial or otherase, in
the 1ssued shares of the Company other than stated above

® Drrectors” confiicts of interest

The Company's articles of association permit the Board to
consider and, if it sees fit, to authorise situations where a
Director has an interest that conflicts, or may possibly conflict,
wath the interests of the Company (“situational conflicts”) The
Board has a formal system :n place for Directors to declare
situational conflicts to be considered for authensation by those
Directors who have no interest in the matter being considered
In deciding whether to authorse a situational conflict, the non-
conflicted Directars must act honestly and in good faith with a
view to the best interests of the Company and they may
impose hmits or condittons when gnang the authornsation, or
subseguently, if they think this 1s appropnate

Any situational conflicts considered, and any authonsations
given, are recorded in the relevant meetings’ minutes The
prescribed procedures have been followed in deciding whether,
and on what terms, to authorise situational conflicts and the
Board believes that the systems it has in place for reporting and
considenng situational conflicts continues to operate effectively

® Directors’ professional development

When a new Director 15 appointed he ar she 1s offered an
induction seminar which is held by the Manager Directors are
also provided on a regular basis with key information on the
Company’s pohcies, regulatory and statutory requirements

and internal controls Changes affecting Directors’
responsibilities are adwised to the Board as they anise Directors
are also able to attend external training faciities and industry
semunars at the expense of the Company and each Director’s
individual training requirements are considered by the
Chairman as part of the annual performance appraisal

® Directors’ insurance and indemmufication

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance cover 1s in place
which indemnifies the Directors against certan liabilities ansing
from the carrying out of theirr duties Under the Company’s
articles of association and, subject to the prowisions of UK
legislation, a qualifying third party provision indemnity may be
provided to Directors tn respect of costs which they may incur
relating to the defence of any proceedings brought against
them arising out of their positions as Directors, in which they
are acquitted or jJudgement is given tn their favour by the
Court The Company has granted indemnity to Directors to the
extent permitted by law in respect of liabilities that may attach
to them n their capacity as Directors of the Company

d) The Board

e Responsibilities of the Board and 1ts Commuittees

The Board meets formally at teast five times a year, with
additional Board or committee meetings arranged when
required The Directors have regular contact with the Portfoho
Manager and Secretary between formal meetings The Board
has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for its
deasion, which are categornsed under various headings
incfuding strategy, management and structure, financial
reporting and other commumications, Board membership and
other appointments, contracts, internal control, corporate
governance and miscellaneous The Board is responsible for
the approval of annual and half year results, interm
management statements and other public documents

At each meeting the Board reviews the Company’s
investment performance and considers financral analyses
and other reports of an operational nature The Board
menitors compliance with the Company's objective and 1s
responsible for setting asset allocation, investment and
gearing hrmuts within which the Manager has discretion to
act and regularly reviews investment strategy It has adopted
a procedure for Directors to take independent professional
adwice in the furtherance of theirr duties at the expense of
the Company In order to enable them to discharge therr
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responsibihties, all Directors have full and timely access to
relevant information

e Committees of the Board

The Board has four Committees the Audit Committee, the
Management Engagement Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Rermuneration Comrmitiee The terms of
reference for these Committees are avallable on the website
www hendersoneuropeanfocus.com or via the Secretary

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all of the Directors and 1s
chaired by Alexander Comba The Board i1s satisfied that at
least one of the Commuttee’s members has recent and
relevant financial experience

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year and is
responsible for the review of the half year results, the annual
accounts, the nature and scope of the external audit and the
findings therefrom, the terms of appointment of the auditors
together with therr remuneration, performance, independence
and objectivity, as well as any non-audit services provided by
the auditors It meets with representatives of the Manager
and receives reports on the quahty and effectiveness of the
accounting records and management information maintaned
on behalf of the Company Representatives of the Manager’s
comphance and risk department regularly attend meetings to
report on the systems of internal controls in place

The provision of non-audit services by the Company's auditors
15 considered and approved by the Audit Comrmittee on a case
by case basis The policy set by the Audit Commuttee, which 1s
kept under review, ensures that consideration 1s given to the
following factors when considering the provision of non-audit
services by the auditors

¢ whether the audit firm 15 the most suitable supplier of non-
audit services,

® the impact on the auditors’ independence and objectmty
and what safeguards can be put in place to eliminate or
reduce any threat in this regard, and

® the cost-effectiveness of the services

The Audit Committee remains satisfied with the effectiveness
of the audit provided by Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audht
Committee 15 satisfied that the auditors are independent of
the Company

The appointment of the auditors s not regularly put out to
tender but performance 1s regularly reviewed by the Audit
Committee On the basis of the auditors’ performance the
Audit Committee recommended their continuing appointment
to the Board with no tender necessary

The auditors have indicated ther willingness to continue In
office Accordingly, resolutions to confirm the appomtment of
Grant Thornton UK LLP as auditors to the Company, and to
authonse the Directors to determine thew remuneration, will
be proposed at the AGM

The Audit Committee has reviewed and s satisfied with the
“whustle blowing” policy that the Manager has put in place
for 1ts staff to rase concerns about possible iImproprieties,
including 1n relation to the Company, in confidence The
policy includes the necessary arrangements for independent
investigation and follow-up action

Nomnatron Committee

When considenng succession planning, the Committee bears
in mind the balance of skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity existing on the Board The Committee has noted that
the FRC has implemented amendments to the UK Code to
strengthen the pnnciple on boardroom diversity The
Nomination Commuttee considers diversity as part of the
annual performance evaluation and it 15 felt that there 15

a range of backgrounds and each director brings different
quahties to the Board and 1ts discussions The Nomination
Commuttee will make recommendations to the Board when
the recruitrnent of additional non-executive Directors 15
required

Once a decision 18 made to recruit additional Directors to the
Board, a formal job description is drawn up The Committee
may use external agencies as and when the requirement to
recruit an addimonal Board member becomes necessary

The Commnuttee also reviews and recommends to the Board
the Directors seeking re-election Recoammendation 1s not
automatic and will follow a process of evaluation of each
Director's performance and consideration of the Director's
independence The Committee also takes into account the mix
of skills and expenence of the current Board members In
accordance with the UK Code any Director serving for fonger
than six years would be subject to particularly rigorous
assessment of his contribution
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The Committee met in September 2012 to carry out its annual
review of the Board, 1ts composition and size and 1ts
Committees The results of the performance evaluation are
contained in (e) below

Management Engagement Committee

All Directors are members of the Management Engagement
Committee, which is charred by the Chairman of the Board
The Committee 1s responsibie for reviewing the management
contract on a regular basis, ensuring that the terms are farr
and reasonable and that its continuance, given the Company's
performance over both short and longer terms, 15 in the best
Interests of the Company and its shareholders and also for
reviewing the performance and cost effectiveness of the
Company’s other service providers

The Committee met tn November 2012 to carry out its annual
review of the Manager, the results of which are contained in
(h) below

Remuneration Commuttee

All Directors are members of the Remuneration Committee,
which 1s chaired by the Chairman of the Board The
Commuttee 15 responsible for monitoring the remuneration of
the Directors The level of Directors’ fees 15 reviewed by
reference to the work involved, the level of responsibility and
the fees paid by comparable investment companies Further
information 1s included in the Directors” Remuneration Report
on page 24

® Board attendance

The table below sets out the number of Board and Commuttee
meetings held during the year under review and the number
of meetings attended by each Director All Directors attended
the AGM in January 2012

Directors’ attendance at meetings

Board AC  MEC NC RC

Number of meetings 6
Rodney Dennis
lean Claude Banon
Alexander Comba
Michael Firth

A O

NN N NN
[y
— 3 e gl
— ot et ewh

AC Audit Committee

MEC  Management Engagement Committee
NC Nomination Committee

RC Remuneration Committee
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Commuttees of the Board also met dunng the year to
undertake business such as the approval of the Company's
results and dwvidend

€) Performance evaluation

The performance of the Company 1s considered in detall at
each Board meeting In September 2012 the Board conducted
a review of its own performance, together with that of its
Commuttees, the Charrman and each indwidual Director
through questtonnaires and discussion and concluded that
each were satisfactory and the Board has a good balance of
skills and experience In particular, 1t 1s considered that each of
the Directors makes a significant cantnbution to the aifairs of
the Company and that Directors seeking re-election at the
Company’s AGM mernt re-election by shareholders The use of
external parties to undertake the performance evaluation has
been used on occasion historically and will be considered from
time to time in the future

f) Internal controls

The Board has established an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing any major nsks faced by the
Company The process accords with advice 1ssued by the FRC
and I1s subject to regular review by the Board

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company's system of
internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness However,
such a system 15 designed to manage rather than eliminate nsks
of failure to achieve the Company’s business objectives and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss The Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal controls for
the year ended 30 September 2012 During the course of its
review the Board has not identfied or been adwvised of any
falings or weaknesses that have been determined as significant
All business risks faced by the Company are recorded in 2 risk
map which 15 reviewed regularly

The Manager has established an internal control framework to
prowvide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance on the
effectiveness of the internal controls operated on behalf of its
clents The effectiveness of the internal controls 15 assessed by
the Manager's compliance and nsk department on a continuing
basis The Board recewves a formal report on a quarterly basis
which detalls the steps taken to monitor the areas of risk,
including those that are not directly the responsibility of the
Manager, and which reports the details of any known internal
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continued

control fallures The Board recewves a report on the Manager's
internal controls each year which includes a report from the
Manager’s auditors on the control policies and procedures in
operation

As all of the Company's management functions are delegated
to third parties and the Board monitors the controls in place
through the Manager’s internal audit department the Board
feels that there is currently no need for the Company to have
1ts own internal audit function

g) Accountability and relationship with the Manager
The Statement of Directors” Responstbilities in respect of the
finanoial staterments 1s set out on page 23, the Independent
Auditor's Report on page 45 and the statement of going
concern on page 14

The Board has delegated contractually to external third partres,
including the Manager, the management of the investment
portfolio, the custodial services {which include the safeguarding
of the assets), the day-to-day accounting, cormpany secretarial
and administration requirements and registration services Each
of these contracts was entered into after full and proper
consideration by the Board of the quality and cost of the
services offered, mcluding the control systems in operation in so
far as they relate to the affairs of the Company

The Board receives and considers regular reports from the
Manager and ad hoc reports and information are supphied to
the Board as required In addition, the Chairman is able to
attend meetings of all the chairmen of the investment trust
comparnes managed by the Manager which provide a forum
to discuss industry matters which would then be reported to
the Board

The Manager takes decistons as to the purchase and sale of
indwidual investments The Manager also ensures that all
Directors receve, in a timely manner, all relevant
management, regulatory and financial information
Representatives of the Manager attend each Board meeting
enabling the Directors to probe further on matters of concern
The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Secretary through its appointed representative who i1s
responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board and
Commuttee procedures are followed and that applicable rules
and regulations are complied with The proceedings at all
Board and Commuttee meetings are fully recorded through a

process that allows any Director's concerns 1o be recorded in
the minutes

The Board has reviewed the implications of the Bnbery Act
200, which came into force on 1 july 2011, and confirmed
its zero tolerance to bribery and corruption i its business
activities It has sought assurances from the Company’s main
contractors and suppliers that they will mamtain adequate
safequards to protect against any potentially legal behaviour
by their employees and agents

h) Continued appointment of the Manager

The Board considers the arrangements for the prowvision of
investment management and other services to the Company
on an ongoing basis The principal contents of the
agreement with the Manager are contained on page 15

Through the Management Engagement Commuitee, an
annual review of the Company’s investment performance over
both the short and longer terms, together with the quality of
other services provided by Henderson, induding company
secretarial, accounting and marketing, and the terms of the
investment management agreement and company secretanal
and admimstration agreement i1s undertaken

The Board remains satisfied with investment performance and,
in partrcular the experence, skills and commitment of the
indmadual Portfoho Manager It is therefore the Dwectors’
opinion that the continuing appointment of the Manager on
the existing terms 1s in the iterests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole

1} Relations with shareholders

Sharehaolder relations are given high prionty by the Board The
prime medium by which the Company communicates wath its
sharehclders 1s through the half year results and annual repart
and financal statements which aim to provide shareholders
with a dear understanding of the Company's actwities and thetr
results This information 1s supplemented by periodic interm
management statements and the daily calculatton and
publication of the NAV per share to a regulatory information
service and a monthly fact sheet which 1s availzble on the
wehsite www hendersoneuropeanfocus com

The Board considers that sharehelders should be encouraged
to attend and participate In the AGM Shareholders have the
opportunity to address questions to the Chairman of the
Board, the Chairman of the Audit Commuttee and all other
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Directors at the meeting John Bennett, the Portfolio Manager,
will make a presentation to shareholders A summary of the
proxy votes receved on the resolutions proposed is displayed
at the meeting and each substantal issue 1s dealt with in a
separate resolution It s the intention of the Board that the
annual report and finanaial statements and notice of AGM be
1ssued to shareholders so as to prowide at least 20 working
days’ notice of the meeting These documents are also
mncluded on the website Shareholders wishing to lodge
questions in advance of the meeting, or raise 1ssues or
concerns at any time, are invited to do so by writing to the
Secretary at the registered office address given on page 48

General presentations to both shareholders and analysts follow
the publication of the annual results All meetings between the
Manager and shareholders are reported to the Board

}) Corporate Responsibiiities

& Rasponsible investment (SEE statement)

Responsible investment 1s the term Henderson uses to cover
its work on corporate governance and corporate responsibility
{or social, environmental and ethical (“SEE™) 1ssues) in the
companies in which it invests on its chents’ behalf, across all
funds In May 2005 Henderson became a founding signatory
to the United Nations Principles for Responsible Investment
The Principles, developed under the auspices of the UN
Secretary-General, are a voluntary and aspirational framework
for incorporating environmental, social and corporate
governance (“ESG”) 1ssues into mainstream investment
decision-making and ownership practices

The way companies respond to sustainability and corporate
responsibiity can affect their business performance, both
directly and indirectly An investee company’s policy on social
responsibility and the environment 1s therefore considered as
part of the nvestment nsk decision

& Voung polcy and the UK Stewardship Code

Henderson's responsible investrent policy sets out the
Manager's approach to corporate governance and corporate
responsibility for all the comparies in which it invests on
behalf of its clients and 1ts policy on proxy voting The policy

Henderson European Focus Trust plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2012

also sets cut how Henderson implements the Stewardship
Code The Company has reviewed Henderson's policy and has
delegated responsibility for voung to the Manager The Board
recewves a report annually on the voting undertaken by the
Manager on behalf of the Company

Henderson believes that voting at general meetings 15 an
important aspect of corporate stewardship and a means of
signalling shareholder views, practices and performance
Voting recommendations are gutded by the best interests of
the investee companies’ sharehalders Depending on the
nature of the resolution the Portfoho Manager will give
specific Instructions on voting non-routine and unusual or
controversial resolutions Deaisions not to support resolutions
and the rationale therefor are fed back to the mvestee
company prior to voting

Practical difficulties may prevent the Manager voting in some
markets In parhcular, varnous factors, including restrictions
on dealing and costs, may inhibit voting In some internaticnal
markets and must be taken into account

The Henderson responsible investment pelicy can be found on
the Henderson website, www henderson com

® EFmployee and environmental matters

The Company has na employees and 1ts core activities are
undertaken by Henderson, which has implemented
environmental management practices, including systems to
limut the use of non-renewable resources and to minimise the
impact of operations on the envronment, and 1s focused on
reducing greenhouse gas emissions and mimimising waste,
where possible

By order of the Board

g

Debbie Fish ACIS

For and on behalf of

Henderson Secretanal Services Limited, Secretary
5 December 2012
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report,
the Dwrectors’ Remuneration Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that faw the Directors
have prepared the financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)
Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they qive a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Company for that year In prepaning
these financial statements, the Directors are required to

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

& make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

® state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject 1o any maternal departures disclosed
and explained in the finangial statements, and

& prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis
unless it 15 iInappropriate to presume that the Campany wall
continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explam the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the Company and enable them to
ensure that the ftnancial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other wrregulanties

Statement under DTR 4 1 12
Each of the Directors, who are listed on page 11, confums
that, to the best of their knowledge

& the financial statements, which have been prepared 1n
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and apphcable law) on a going concern basis, give a true and
fair view of the assets, lrabilities, frnancral position and profit
or loss of the Company, and

® the annual report and financal statements include a fair
review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Company, together with a descnption
the principal n§ks and uncertainties that 1t faces

gnefd for arid on behd{ of the Board of Directors

Rodrey Dennis
Chairman
5 December 2012

legislation in other junsdictions

The financial statements are published on www hendersoneuropeanfocus.com which 1s a website maintained by the
Company’s Manager, Henderson Global Investors Limited (“Henderson”}

The maintenance and integrity of the website i1s the responsibility of Henderson, the work carried out by the auditors does
not invelve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may
have occurred to the financial statements since they were inittally presented on the website

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

This report 1s submitted in accordance with Sections 420-422
of the Companies Act 2006 (“the Act”) The report also
meets the relevant Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority and describes how the Board has applied the
principles refating to Directors’ remuneration As required by
Section 439 of the Act, an ordinary resclution to approve the
report will be proposed at the annual general meeting The
Company's auditors are required to report on certain
information contained within this repart Where information
set out below has been audited, 1t 1s indicated as such

Remuneration policy

All Directors are non-executive and the Company has no
employees The whole Board fulfills the function of the
Rermuneration Committee No advice or services were provided
by any external person in respect of the consideration of
Directors’ remuneration

Directors are remunerated in the form of fees, payable
quarterly in arrears, to the Director personally In accordance
with the Company's articles of association the aggregate
remuneratton of the Directors may not exceed £150,000 per
annum Subject to this overall hmit, the Board’s policy 1s that
remuneration should be comparable to that of other
investment trusts of a similar size and with a similar capital
structure and investrment objective and should be of a
sufficrent level to attract and retain directors of a suitable
calibre

No Drrector is eligible to receve bonuses, pension benefits,
share options or other benefits and no long-term incentive
schemes are in place

No Director has a service contract with the Company
Directors’ appointments may be terminated at any tme by
written notice with no compensation payable

Directors’ fees

Directors’ annual fees are £30,000 for the Chairman, £24,000
for the Chawman of the Audit Commuttee and £21,000 for
the other Directors Fees were last increased 1n October 2011

The fees paid to the Directors who served duning the years
ended 30 September 2011 and 2012 were as follows

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2012 2011

{Audited) £ £
Rodney Dennis™ 30,000 25,000
Jean Claude Banon 21,000 18,000
Alexander Comba® 24,000 21,000
Michael Firth 21,000 18,000
Jotal 96,000 82,000

“ Chawman and highest patd Director

@ Chawrman of the Audit Committee

No other remuneration or compensation was paid or payable
by the Company during the year to any of the current or
former Directors or third parties

Performance graph

The Company's performance 1s measured against the FTSE
World Europe ex UK Index on a total return basis in sterling
terms (”the Benchmark Index”) The graph below compares
the mid-market price of the Company’s ordinary shares over
the five year penod ended 30 September 2012 with the
Benchmark Index over the same period

Performance
to 30 September 2012

By order of the Board

Debbie Fish ACIS

For and on behalf of

Henderson Secretanal Services Liruted, Secretary
5 December 2012




Henderson European Focus Trust plc Annual Report and Finanaal Statements 2012 1 25

Income Statement

for the year ended 30 September 2012

Year ended 30 September 2012 Year ended 30 September 2011
Revenue Caprtal Revenue Capital
return retum Total return return Totat
Notes £000 £:000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000
2(a) GainsAlosses) on investments held at
fair value through profit or loss - 17,555 17,555 - {10,518y (10,518}
2(b) Gainsflosses) on derivative instruments - 1,142 1,142 - {(1.832) (1,832)
Exchange gain on currency transactions - 442 442 - 10 10
3 Income from investments 4,115 140 4,255 4,549 - 4,549
4 Other income 29 - 29 8 - 8
Gross revenue and capital gains/(losses) 4,144 19,279 23,423 4,557 (12,3400 (7,783)
5 Management fee (202) (606) {808) (181) {545) (726)
5 Performance fee - (1.211) (1,.211) - - -
Other fees and expenses (452) (472) (924) (334) (317) {651)
Net return on ordinary activities
before finance charges and taxation 3,490 16,9%0 20,480 4,042 {13,202y (9,160}
7 Finance charges {45) {135) {180) (20} (59} (79)
Net return on ordinary activities
before taxation 3,445 16,855 20,300 4,022 (13,261) (9,239}
8 Taxation on net return on ordinary
activities {4a7 (21) {468) (511) - (511}
Net return on ordinary activities
after taxation 2,998 16,834 19,832 3,511 (13,261}  (9,750)
9 Return per ordinary share 1749p 9818p 11567p 1829p (69 09p (50 80)p

The total columns of this statement represent the Income Statement of the Company The revenue return and capital
return columns are supplementary 10 this and are prepared under guidance published by the Assoctation of Investment
Companies All revenue and capital stems in the above statement derve from continuing operations No operations
were acquired or discontinued during the year The Company had no recognised gains or losses other than those
disclosed In the Income Staterment

The notes on pages 29 to 44 form part of these financial statements
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Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

for the year ended 30 September 2012

Called up Special Caprtal
share distnbutable Merger redemption Capstal Revenue
caprtal reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Tota!
Notes  Year ended 30 September 2012 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 30 September 2011 9,852 24,981 61344 8,671 {11,665} 10,730 103,913
Net return on ordinary activities
after taxation - - - - 16,834 2,998 19,832
10 Ordinary dividend paid - - - - - {3,082) (3,082)
16 Buy-backs of ordinary shares and
held in treasury - (5232) - - - - (5,232}
16 Cancellation of ordinary shares
from treasury (750) - - 750 - - -
At 30 September 2012 9,102 19,749 61,344 9,421 5.169 10,646 115,431
Called up Special Capnal
share distributable Merger redemption Capnal Revenue
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Tetal
Notes  Year ended 30 September 2011 £ 000 £:000 £°000 £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
At 30 September 2010 12,352 53,001 61,344 6,171 1,596 10,481 144,945
Net return on ordinary activities
after taxation - - - - (13,261} 3,511 {9,750)
10 Ordinary dividend paid - - - - - (3,262} (3,262)
16 Buy-backs of ordinary shares and
held i treasury - {28,020) - - - - (28,020}
16 Cancellation of erdinary shares
from treasury (2,500) - - 2,500 - - -
At 30 September 2011 9,852 24,981 61,344 8671 {(1t,665) 10,730 103,913

The notes on pages 29 to 44 form part of these financial statements
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Balance Sheet

at 30 September 2012

2012 2011
Notes £000 £ 000
Fixed assets
11 Investments held at fair value through profit or loss 126,531 99,031
Current assets
13 Debtors 3,128 6,873
Cash at bank and held at broker 6,774 6,766
9,902 13,639
14 Creditors amounts falling due within one year (21,002) (8.757)
Net current {habilities)/assets {11,100) 4,882
Net assets 115,431 103,913
Capital and reserves
16 Called up share capitat 9,102 9,852
17 Speaal distnbutable reserve 19,749 24,981
18 Merger reserve 61.344 61,344
1% Capital redemption reserve 9,421 8,671
20 Capital reserve 5,169 (11,665)
21 Revenue reserve 10,646 10,730
Shareholders’ funds 115,431 103,913
22 Net asset value per ordinary share 682 2p 580 0p

ed pn its behalf by

Rodney Dennis
Chairman

The notes on pages 29 to 44 form part of these financial statements

ese \nancial staternadnts were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 December 2012 and



28

Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 30 September 2012
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2012 2012 2011 2011
Notes £°000 £°000 £ 000 £ 000
24 Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,663 4,292
Servicing of finance
Interest paid (149) {(82)
Net cash outflow from servicing of finance (149) (82}
Finanaal investment
Purchases of investments {301,627} (261,452)
Sales of investments 291,853 303,018
Gains/(losses) on dervative instruments 1,470 (1,832)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
financaal investment {8,304) 39,734
Equity dividend paid (3.082) (3,262}
Net cash (outflow)/ inflow before
financing activities (8.872) 40,682
Financing
Shares repurchased to be held in treasury (5,355) (27,896}
Loans repaid - (5,097)
Decrease in short-term deposits - 33
{5.355) (36,960)
(Decrease)/increase in cash (14,227} 3,722
Reconaliation of net cash flow to
movement in net debt
{Decrease)fincrease in cash as above (14.227) 3,722
Decrease n short-term deposits - (33}
Decrease in horrowings - 9,097
Exchange movements 442 10
Movement in net debt (13.785) 12,796
Net cash/{debt) at 1 October 4,187 (8,609)
25 Net (debt)/cash at 30 September (9,598) 4,187

The notes on pages 29 to 44 form part of these financal statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies

{a) Basis of preparation

The finanoal statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the histonical cost basis of accounting,
modified to include the revaluation of investments at farr value The financal statements have been prepared in
accordance with Unrted Kingdor Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and wath the Statement of Recommended
Practice (“the SORP") for investment trusts and venture capital trusts issued by the Association of Investment Companies
("the AIC")in January 2009 All of the Company’s operations are of a conttnuing nature In the opinion of the Drrectors,
the Company 1s engaged In a single segment business and therefore no segmental reporting s provided The accounting
policies applied for the year ended 30 September 2012 are unchanged from the previous year

(b) Valuation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss

The listed investments are designated at fair value through profit or loss, as the Company’s investment portfolio 15
managed and its performance 15 evaluated on a farr value basis, in accordance wath a documented investment strategy
Infarmation about the portfolio 1s provided internally on that basis to the Company’s Board Fair value 1s deemed to be
bid price or the last trade price depending on the convention of the exchange on which the investment 1s quoted

Changes in the farr value of investrments held at fair value through profit or loss and gains and losses on disposal are
recogrised in the Income Statement as “gains or losses on investments held at farr value through profit or loss”
Expenses that are inadental to the acquisition of an investment are expensed through the Income Statement as a
capital item Expenses that are incidental to the disposal of an investment are deducted from the proceeds of the sale
of the investment All purchases and sales are accounted for on a trade date basis

As the Company’s subsichary company, Aberdeen European Investment Trust PLC, 15 1n hquidation, the farr value is the
net realisabte value as estmated by the iqudator Any change in fair value of this investment, save for distnbutions, 18
recognised as capital in the Income Statement

{c) Dernivative instruments

Where appropriate, certain permitted transactions involving derivative instruments are used Denivative transactions into
which the Company may enter include forward currency contracts, CFDs, futures and options, and are measured at far
value The far value is the quoted trade price for the contract

Where such transactions are used to increase portfolio returns, if the circumstances support this, then the income and
expenses derived from them are incdluded in net denvative incame via the revenue column of the Income Statement
Where such transactions are used to protect or enhance capital, if the arcumstances support this, the gains and losses
derived from them are included in gainsflosses) on derivative instruments held at fair value through profit or loss via
the capital column of the Income Staternent Any positions on such transactions open at the year end are reflected in
the Balance Sheet at their fair value within current assets and current liabiliies

(d) Foretgn currency

The results and financial position of the Company are expressed in sterling, which is the functional and presentatonal
currency of the Company 5terling 1s the functional currency because the Company s listed in the UK wath a
predominantly UK shareholder base

Transactions recorded in overseas currencies during the year are translated into sterling at the appropnate daily exchange
rates Monetary assets and liabilities and equity investments held at fair value through profit or loss which are denorminated
in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at that date

Any gains or losses on the translation of foreign currency balances, whether realised or ynrealised, are taken to the capital
or to the revenue return of the Income Statement, depending on whether the gain or loss 15 of a capital of revenue nature
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Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

Accounting polices (continued)

{e} Income

Dwmdends recevable from equity shares are taken to the revenue return on an ex-dividend basis except where, In the
opinion of Directors, the divdend I1s capital in nature in which case 1t 1s taken to the capital return Income from fixed
interest debt secunities and preference shares 1s recognised using the effective interest rate method in accordance with
the SORP The ordinary element of s¢rip dividends recewed in leu of cash dwdends 1s recognised as revenue Any
enhancement above the cash dvidend 15 treated as capital

Bank interest s accounted for on an accruals basis

() Management and administrative expenses and finance charges

All expenses and finance charges are accounted for on an accruals basis The annual management fee and borrowing
interest charges are allocated 75% to capital and 25% to revenue in line with the Board’s expected long-term sphit of
returns in the form of capital and income profits respectively

In accordance with the SORP, tax relief, if applicable, 15 credited in respect of such allocations between capital and
revenue using the marginal method

In accordance with the SORP, the performance-related fee (when payable) is allocated 100% to capital, together with

the tax relief in respect of such allocations, as the fee 1s based on outperformance against the Company's Benchmark

Index The FTSE World Europe ex UK Index on a total return basis in sterling terms 15 used as the “benchmark” agaimnst
which performance 1s measured

{g) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable s based on the taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the Income Statement because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible tn other years and 1t
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Company’s liability for current tax 1s calculated using the
effective tax rate of corporation tax for the accounting penod

In line with the recommendations of the SORP, the allocation method used to calculate tax relief on expenses presented
against capital returns in the supplementary information in the Income Staternent is the “marginal basis” Under this
basts, if taxable income 1s capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue return column of the
Income Statement, then no tax relief is transferred to the capital return column

Deferred taxation 15 provided on all timing differences that have onginated but not reversed by the balance sheet date This
Is subject to deferred tax assets only being recogrised if it 1s considered more likely than not that there will be suitable
profits from which the future reversal of timing differences can be deducted Any liability to deferred tax 1s provided at the
average rate of tax expected to apply based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance sheet date Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted to reflect the ume value of money

(h) Borrowings

Interest beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded minially at fair value, being the proceeds received, less direct 1ssue
costs They are subsequently remeasured at amortised cost Finance charges, including interest payable, premiums on
settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis In the Income Statement using
the effective interest rate method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not
settled 1n the period in which they anse
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Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

1 Accounting policies (continued)}

(i) Dividends payable to shareholders

Dwidends payable to shargholders are recognised in the financial statements when they are paid, or in the case of final
dividends, when they are approved by shareholders Dividends are dealt with in the Reconcitation of Movements in
Shareholders’ Funds

(1) Issue and repurchase of ordinary shares and assocated costs

The costs of repurchasing ordinary shares, including related stamp duty and transaction ¢osts, are taken directly to equity
and reported through the Reconalation of Movement in Shareholders’ Funds, with the cost of the repurchase being
charged to a caprtal distnbutable reserve Share repurchase transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis The
nominal value of ordinary share capital repurchased and cancelled 1s transferred out of called-up share capital and into the
caprtal redemption reserve, in accordance with Section 733 of the Companies Act 2006 Where shares are repurchased and
held in treasury, the transfer to the capital redemption reserve 1s made if and when such shares are subsequently cancelled

(k) Capital reserves

The following are accounted for in this reserve

— gains and losses on disposals of investments,

- realised foreign exchange differences of a capital nature,

- cost of repurchasing ordinary share capital,

~ other capital charges and credits charged to this account In accordance with the above policies,
—increases and decreases in the valuation of investments held at the year end, and

— unrealised foreign exchange differences of a capital nature

{l) Consohidation
The Balance Sheet of the Cempany’s subsidiary at 30 September 2012 has not been consolidated as control over the
subsidary company Is exerased by the iquidator, not the Company

2 Gains/(losses} from investments held at fair value through profit or loss 2012 2011
and on denvative instruments £000 £ 000
(a) {Losses)gains on the sale of investments based on histoncal cost (1,698) 14,324
Less Revaluation losses/{gains) recognised in previous years 7,955 (14,395}
Gams/losses) on investments sold in the year based on carrying value at previous

balance sheet date 6,257 7N
Revaluation gainsflosses) on investments held at 30 September 11,298 (10,447)
12,555 (10,518)

(b) Realised gains/{losses) on dervative instruments 1,470 (2,399)
Unrealised (losses)gains on derivative instruments {328) 567
1,142 (1,832)

Where deemed appropnate, the use of certain permitted dernivative instruments, that may include futures and options,
CFDs and forward currency contracis 1s made for efficient portfolio management purposes
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Notes to the Financial Statements

continued
2012 2011
3 Income from invastments £'000 £ 000
Listed investments
Overseas divdends 4,031 4,424
Franked UK dividends 26 -
Stock dividends 58 125
4,115 4,549
2012 2011
4 Other iIncome £000 £000
Deposit interest 29 8
2012 20m
5 Management and Income Capnal Total Income Capital Total
performance fees £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Management fee 202 606 808 181 545 726
A description of the basis for calculating the management fee is given in the Report of the Directors on page 15
A performance fee 1s payable for the year ended 30 September 2012 of £1,211,000 (2011 nil)
Management fees are allocated 25% to revenue and 75% to capital in the Income Statement The performance fee
{when payable) s allocated 100% to capital
2012 2011
6 Other expenses £000 £ 000
Revenue:
Directors’ fees (see Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 24} 96 82
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services 22 21
AlC subscriptions 12 17
Directors’ and Officers’ hability insurance 10 16
Listing fees 16 13
Printing and postage 34 32
Regsstrar’s fees 46 46
Legal fees 131 23
QOther expenses 85 84
452 334
Capital:
Transaction costs incurred on acquisitons of investments 472 317
924 651
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Notes to the Financial Statements

continued
20%2 2014
7 Finance charges £000 £000
On bank loans and overdrafts repayable within one year 180 79
Interest payable 1s allocated 25% to revenue and 75% to capital in the Income Statement
Year ended 30 September 2012 Year ended 30 September 2011
Revenue Caprtal Revenue Capital
returmn return Total retum return Total
8 Taxation £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
(a) Analysis of tax charge for
the year
Qverseas tax suffered 447 21 468 521 - 521
Overseas tax credits - - - (10) - (10}
Tota! taxation for the year 447 21 468 511 - 511
|
Year ended 30 September 2012 Year ended 30 September 2011
Revenue Caprtal Revenue Capital
(b) Factors affecting retum retum Tatal retumn return Total
the tax charge for the year £000 £000 £'000 £'600 £'000 £000 ‘
Return on ordinary activities
before taxation 3,445 16,855 20,300 4,022 {13,261) (9,239)
Corporation tax at 28% - - - 563 {1,856) (1,293)
Corporation tax at 26% 448 2,191 2,639 523 {1,724) (1,201)
Corporation tax at 24% 413 2,023 2,436 - - -
Effects of
Non-taxable capital profits - {4,785) {4.785) - - -
Non-taxable income (1,029) (35) {1,064) {1,228} - {(1,228)
Expenses not deductible for
tax purposes - 118 118 3 86 89 |
Current year expenses not utilised 168 488 656 139 163 302
Overseas tax 447 21 468 521 - 521
QOverseas tax credits - - - {10) - (10}
Non-deductible capital losses - - - - 3,331 3.3
447 21 468 511 - 511

Investment trusts are exempt from corporation tax on capital gains provided that they meet the tests under Section 1158
of the Corporation Tax Act 2010

Due to the Company’s status as an mvestment trust and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to
obtain approval in the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains or losses
ansing on the revaluation or disposal of investments
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Taxation (continued)

The Company has not recognised a deferred tax asset totalling £865,000 (2011 £291,000) ansing as a result of having
unutilised management expenses and unutilised non-trade loan relationship defiaits These expenses will only be utilised if

the Company has profits chargeable to corporation tax in the future

9 Return per ordinary share
The return per ordinary share 1s based on the net return attributable to the ordinary shares of £19,832,000 (2011 net
negative return of £9,750,000) and on 17,145,613 ordinary shares (2011 19,193,454), being the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue dunng the year The return per ordinary share can be further analysed between revenue
and capital, as below
2012 2011
£000 £ 000
Net revenue return 2,998 3,911
Net capital return 16,834 {13,261)
Net total return 19,832 {9,750}
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year 17.145,613 | 19,193,454
Revenue return per ordinary share 17.49p 18 29p
Caputal loss per ordinary share 98.18p {69 09)p
Total return per ordinary share 11567p (50 80)p
The Company does not have any dilutive securities, therefore the basic and diluted returns per share are the same
10 Dnidends pard and payable on the ordinary shares
2012 2011
Omdends on ordinary shares Record date Payment date £000 £ 000
interim dividend (16 50p) for the year
ended 30 September 2010 10 December 2010 31 December 2010 - 3,262
Interim dividend (17 75p) for the year
ended 30 September 2011 16 December 2011 30 December 2011 3,082 -
3,082 3,262

The intenm divdend for the year ended 30 September 2012, which is in lieu of a final dwvidend, has not been included as
a liability in these finanoial statements The total dwidend payable in respect of the financial year, which forms the basis

of the retention test under Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010, s set out below

2012
£000
Revenue available for distribution by way of dividend for the year 2,998
Intenm dwidend (19 00p) for the year ended 30 September 2012
(based on 16,919,919 crdinary shares in issue at 30 November 2012) {3,215)
Undistributed revenue for Section 1158 purposes (217)
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continued
2012 2011
11 Investments held at fair value through profit or loss £'000 £ 000
Cost at 1 October 106,514 135,424
Addmions at cost {excluding transaction costs) 298,135 262,575
Proceeds of disposal (net of transaction costs) (288,190) (305,809)
Realised {lossesygains on disposals {1,698) 14,324
Cost at 30 September 114,761 106,514
Investment holding gainsflosses) at 30 September 11,770 (7,483)
Valuation at 30 September 126,531 99,031

The Company's Investments are registered in the name of nominees of, and held to the order of, HSBC Bank plc, as

custodian to the Company There were no contingent llabilities in respect of the investments held at the year end

Purchase transaction costs for the year ended 30 September 2012 were £472,000 (2011 £317,000) These comprise
mainly stamp duty and commission Sale transaction costs for the year ended 30 September 2012 were £421,000 (2011

£257,000)
12 Investments in subsidianes
The Company owns the whole of the 1ssued share capital of Aberdeen European Investment Trust plc, an unhisted
company which was placed in members’ voluntary hquidation on 26 February 1999 The investment 1s included in these
accounts at its net realsable value as estimated by the liquidator At 30 September 2012 the farr value of Aberdeen
European Investment Trust plc was mif 2011 nil}
2012 2011
13 Debtors £'000 £000
Amounts recevable within one year
Investrments sold awaiting settlement 2,741 6,404
Accrued income - 1
Prepaid expenses 3 6
Overseas withholding tax recoverable 384 453
Other debtars - 9
3,128 6,873




36

Henderson European Focus Trust plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued
2012 2001
14 Creditors £000 £ 000
Amounts payable within one year
Investments purchased awaiting settlement 2,667 5,877
Accrued expenses and interest 1,567 233
UK corporation tax 68 68
Fair value of open derivative contracts 328 -
Bank overdraft 16,372 2,579
21,002 8.757

15

The Company has an uncommitted, secured multi-currency overdraft faciity equal to the lesser of £40,000,000 and 25%
of net assets with HSBC Bank ple Interest is charged at the bank’s fluctuating base rate, plus a margin of 1 25% per
annum Barrowings are repayable on demand

Financial nsk management polictes and procedures

151

15.11

As an investment trust, the Company invests in equities and other investments for the long term so as to secure its
investment cbjective and policy as stated on page 12 In pursuing its investment objective and policy, the Company 15
exposed to a vanety of finanaal nsks that could result in either a reduction in the Company's net assets or a reduction
in the profits available for distnbution by way of dwidends

These financial nsks market nsk (compnsing market price nsk, currency nisk and interest rate nsk), credit nisk, hguidity risk
and geanng, and the Directors’ approach 1o the management of these risks, are set out below and have not changed from
the previous accounting period The Board and the Manager coordinate the Company's nsk management

Market risk

The fair value of a financial instrument held by the Company may fiuctuate due to changes in market prices This market
risk comprises market price risk (see note 15 1 1), currency nsk {see note 15 1 2) and interest rate risk (see note 15 1 3)
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing these nisks The Manager assesses the exposure to market price risk
when making each investrnent decision and monitors the overall ievel of market price risk on the whole of the investment
portfolio on an angoing basis

Market price risk

The Company 15 an nvestment company and as such its performance 15 dependant on the valuation of its investments
Consequently, market price nisk Is the most significant nsk to which the Company s exposed The Company's investrnent
objective and policy require 1t to nvest mainly in hsted Continental European stocks

At 30 September 2012 the farr value of the Company's assets exposed to market price nsk was £126,531,000 (2011
£99,031,000) The far value of the investments in the portfolio 1s normally their bid-market price The market price of
investee companies’ shares is subject to their performance, supply and demand for the shares and investor sentiment
regarding the companies, their industry sectors and the countries in which they operate The 28% nise in the value of
assets exposed to market risk was manly attributable to the increase in the market prices of investments

The Company invests in a diversified portfolio of investments In accordance with the Company’s investment objective
and policy the portfolio contains between 50 and 60 stocks, wath a maximum single stock weighting of 10% of the net
asset value ("NAV") of the portfolio at the time of investment Stocks weighted at 5% of the portfolio or more will not
exceed 40% of the NAV in aggregate The mimimum stock weight is 1% of NAV at the time of investment The largest
indinidual stock at the year end represented 8 1% of the value of the portfolio The Company may use denvative
instruments (such as futures and options) for the purpose of efficient portfolio management up to 10% of net assets As
at 30 September 2012 the Company had a gross exposure of £5 7 million to such instrurnents Dunng the year the
Company achewved a net gain of £1,142,000 from its use of dervative instruments as shown in note 2
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1512

The level of nsk relative to the Benchmark Index 15 increased by over or underweighting mdustry sectors and, to a lesser
extent, country exposures and stock exposures relative to the Benchmark Index, which tends to concentrate nsk i those
over and underweighted areas As can be seen from the chart on page 10 the largest industry sector weighting variances
at the year end were in the financials, utiliies and telecoms (underweight), technology and health care {overweight)
sectors These weightings reflect the strategy outhned in the Portfolio Manager's Report on pages 6 and 7

To illustrate the Company’s sensitwity to market prices, a 10% change to the market value (in sterling terms} of the
equity portfolio at 30 September 2012 would generate a corresponding increase or decrease in the NAV per ordinary
share of 10 88% or £12 6 million

Currency risk

The majonity of the Company’s assets are denominated in currencies other than stering so the Company's total return
and Balance Sheet can be significantly affected by currency fluctuations No hedging of the currency exposure 1s currently
undertaken Revenue received in currencies other than sterling 1s converted into sterling on, or shortly after, the date of
receipt Whilst the Board and the Manager monitor geographical and currency exposure it 1s not a key determinant of
Investment decisions At the year end 96 7% (2011 100 8%) of the Company's total assets were denominated in
currencies other than sterling, the largest proportion being euro, at 55 9% (2011 66 1%) of total assets

The table below shows, by currency, the split of the Company’s non-sterling monetary assets and investments at the year end

2012 011

£°000 £ 000
Monetary assets (net)
Cash and short-term recewables
Euro 2,224 10,109
Swiss franc 1,898 1,470
Norwegian kroner - 14
US doltar 38 -
Monetary habilities
Bank overdraft and short-term payables
Euro {17,468} (5.838)
Swiss franc (85) -
Swedish krona (1.486) -
Non-monetary assets
Non-current asset investments held at farr value
Euro 79,821 64,363
Swass franc 30,925 23,539
Swedish krona 6,806 8,680
Norwegian kroner 5.641 -
Danish kroner 3,338 2,449
Total 111,652 104,786
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15.13

The level of assets exposed to currency nsk increased by approximately 7% during the year In common with the

exposure to market price risk, this was mainly attributable to increases in the market prices of investments held Subject
to this the relative levels of exposure to currencies at the beginning and end of the year were broadly representative of

levels through the penod

As can be seen fram the table abave the most significant currency exposures are to the euro and Swaiss francs Over the
financial year to 30 Septernber 2012, sterling appreciated by 8 1% against the euro (2011 appreciated by 0 6%) and

appreciated by 7 3% against the Swiss franc (2011 appreciated by 8 1%) It 1s not possible to forecast how much

exchange rates might move in the next financial year, but based on the movements In the above two major currencies

over the last two years, 1t appears reasonably possible that rates could change by 10%

The followsng table illustrates the Company’s sensitvity to movements 1 exchange rates relatve to sterling The sensitvity

analysis 1s based on the Company’s non-sterling monetary assets and mvestments held at the balance sheet date and

assurnes a 10% appreciation or depreciation of sterling against each of the currencies to which the Company 15 exposed,
with all other vanables held constant A 10% appreciation of sterhng would reduce the value of net assets by approximately

87% or £10 0 mullion 2011 9 2% or £9 5 millon) Revenue return for the forthcoming year would be reduced by
£295,000 (2011 £275,000) The effect on capital return would be matenally the same as the effect on net assets

2012 2012 2011 2011

Net assets Revenue Net assets Revenue

£000 £000 £'000 £ 000

Euro 5,827 190 6,183 187
Swiss francs 2,961 75 2,257 69
Other currencies 1,210 30 1,091 19
9,998 295 9,531 275

It should be noted that a number of investee companies denve a proportion of therr profits from markets subject to
currencies other than that in which their shares are denominated, so changes in the relevant currency exchange rates
relative to each other are also likely to have an indirect impact Also, the above illustration 15 based on exposures at the
year end Exposures may be subject to change during the year as a result of investment decisions

Liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year end and prior year relate to bank borrowings and investment

transactions awaiting settlement The balance outstanding at the year end was not material in the context of

currency risk

Interest rate nsk

The Company finances part of its actiities through the use of a secured uncommitted multi-currency overdraft facility
equal to the lesser of £40,000,000 and 25% of net assets prowided by HSBC Bank plc Interest rates are set at the time
drawings are made based on the bank's base rate, plus a margin of 1 25% per annum Drawings are normally in euros
Ounng the year, the maximum drawn under the facihty was £18,080,000 (2011 £12,900,000) and the weighted average
interest rate was 1 75% (2011 2 32%) No hedging of the interest rate i1s undertaken At 30 September 2012 there
were drawings of £16,372,000 outstanding, all of which were in foreign currencies (2011 £2,579,000, of which the

equivalent of £349,000 was in foreign currencies)

The Company earns interest on its cash and short-term deposits Overdraft drawings and depesits are rarely fixed for

peniods of more than one week
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153

At 30 September 2012, financiat assets and habiliies exposed to floating interest rates were as follows |

2012 2011
£'000 £ 000
Financial assets
Cash balances 6,774 6,766
Financial habilities
Bank overdraft (16,372) (2,579

The Company has no direct exposure to fixed interest rates

The year end amounts are not representative of the exposure to iInterest rates either dunng the year just ended nor far
the year ahead, since the level of borrowings and/or cash held will be affected by the strategy being followed in response
to the Board’s and Manager‘s perception of market prospects and the investment opportunities available at any particular
time However, to lllustrate the potental sensitivmity to changes i interest rates, f £23 milion was drawn from the
uncommutted multi-currency overdraft facility (based on the 20% geanng limit set by the Board), a change of 0 5% in
the rate of interest charged would, over the course of a year, amount to £115,000 (ignoning any exchange rate
movements), less than 0 1% of year end net assets

Credit nsk

Credit nsk 15 the Company's exposure to financia! loss from fallure of a counterparty to deliver securities or cash for
acquisitions or disposals of investments or to repay deposits The Company manages credit nsk by using brokers from a
database of approved financial institutions who have undergone ngorous due diigence tests by the Manager's risk
management team and by dealing through Henderson Global Investars Limited with banks authonsed by the Financial
Services Authority

At 30 Septermber 2012, the maximum exposure to credit nsk was £9,515,000 (2011 £13,170,000), compnsing

2012 201
£000 £1000
Cash at bank 6,774 6.766
Investments sold awaiting settlement 2,741 6,404

All of the above financial assets are current, their farr values are considered to be the same as the values shown and the
Iikelihood of default 1s considered to be low

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the possibility of the Company failing to realise sufficient assets to meet its financial obligations The
Company minimises this nsk by having a tias to larger capitalised companies, by investing in listed compamies and by
ensuning that it has adequate cash and crecit facilities in place to meet its obligations The Company’s iquidity 1s mostly
held in euros, almost entirely on interest-beanng current accounts or short-term deposits in the money rmarket Deposits
are rarely fixed for terms in excess of one week and, if amounts are substantial, are placed with different deposit takers
50 that, at any given time, deposits do not exceed 8,000,000 with any one deposit taker Cash requwements are
monitored on a regular basis by the Manager
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155

At 30 September 2012, the farr value of financial habiities was £20,606,000 2011 £8,689,000), cormprising

2012 2011
£'000 £ 000
Due within one month
Investments purchased awaiting settlement 2,667 5,877
Bank overdraft 16,372 2,579
Accrued expenses and interest 1,567 233

Gearing

Market nsks can be amplified by geaning As discussed above, in addition to using shareholders’ funds to finance
investments the Company can also invest funds availlable from drawings on its overdraft faclity Such gearing will
exaggerate the effect on the NAV of a change in the value of the portfolio If the Company’s uncomrmtted mult-
currency overdraft facility was extended to the level permitted by the Board the bank gearning would amount to 20% of
net assets and In those arcumstances a change of 10% in the value of the portfolio would be expected to change the
NAV by approxmately 12 0%

As noted on page 39 in the interest rate nsk section, the level of borowings and/or cash held duning the year will be
affected by the strategy being followed in response to the Board's and Manager's perception of market prospects and
the investment opportunities available at any particular time

At the year end there was bank geanng of 8 3% (2011 nil, with a net cash holding of 4 0%)

Fair value hierarchy

Under FRS 29 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’ the Company 1s required to classify fair value measurements using a farr
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of these inputs used in making the measurements The fair value hierarchy
shall have the following levels

Level 1 - valued using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets

Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation techmques using observable inputs other than quoted pnices included within
Level 1

Level 3 — valued by reference to valuation techriques using inputs that are not based on observable market data

Categonisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level of input that 15 significant to the
fair value measurement of the relevant asset Financial assets and habilities measured at fair value are grouped into the
fair value hierarchy at 30 September 2012 and the previous year as follows

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2012 £°000 £'000 £:000 £'000
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Quoted equities 126,531 - - 126,531
Denvative instruments - (328) - (328)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
201 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Quoted equities 99,031 - - 99,031

The farr value of the Company’s investments in quoted equities has been deterrmined by reference to therr quoted bid
prices at the reporting date Quoted equities included in Level 1 are actively traded on recogrused stock exchanges
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156  Capital management policies and procedures
The Company’s capital management objectves are to ensure that it walt be able to continue as a going concern, and to
maximise the revenue and capital return 1o its equity shareholders This 1s achieved through an appropnate balance of
equity capital and debt

The Company’s capital at 30 September 2012 comprises its equity share capital and reserves that are shown 1n the
Balance Sheet at a total of £115,431,000 (2011 £103,913,000)

The Board, with the assistance of the Manager, monitors and reviews the broad structure of the Company’s capital on
an ongoing basis This review includes

— the planned level of gearing, which takes into account the Manager's view on the market,

~ the need to buy back equity shares, esther for cancellation or to hold in treasury, which takes account of the difference
between the NAV per share and the share price {1 e the level of share price discount or premiumy) as well as the
discount of the peer group and the level of the equity market,

- the need for new i1ssues of equity shares, including sales from treasury, and

- the extent to which revenue 1n excess of that which 1s required to be distributed should be retained
The Company is subject to several externally imposed capital requirements

— borrowings are not to exceed 25% of the adjusted NAV,

- as a public company, the Company has a mintmum share capital of £50,000, and

- in order to be able to pay dvidends out of profits available for distribution by way of dwidends, the Company has to
be able to meet the capital restnction tests imposed on investment companies by company law

The Company has complied with these requirements

The Company's objectives, policies and procedures for managing capital are unchanged from last year

2012 2011

16 Called up share capital £000 £ 000
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid

16,919,919 (2011 17,917,040) ordinary shares of 50p each 8,460 8,959

1,284,230 (2011 1,787,109} ordinary shares of 50p each held in treasury 642 893

9,102 9,852

Dunng the year to 30 September 2012, the Company repurchased 997,121 {2011 4,524,820) ordinary shares, to be
held in treasury, at a cost of £5,232,000 (2011 £28,020,000) 1,500,000 (2011 5,000,000} ordinary shares held in
treasury were cancelled duning the year The crdinary shares held in treasury have no voting nghts and are not
entitled to dividends

2012 201

17 Speaal distributable reserve £'000 £000
Balance brought forward 24,981 53,001
Cost of shares repurchased (5.232) (28,020)

Balance at 30 September 19,749 24,981




42

Henderson European Focus Trust plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

17

Special distnbutable reserve {continued)

The special distnbutable reserve was created on 11 July 2007 following the cancellation of the share premuurm account

and the capital redemption reserve and 1s available to fund market purchases and the subsequent cancellation of own

shares
18 Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the premium over the nominal value of ordinary shares issued in March 1997 in
connection with the acquisition of The German Investment Trust plc
2012 2011
19 Capital redemption reserve £000 £ 000
Balance brought forward 8,671 6,171
Nominal value of ordinary shares cancelled from treasury 750 2,500
Balance at 30 September 9,421 8,671
The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of ordinary shares repurchased and cancelled subsequent
to 11 July 2007
20%2 2011
20 Capital reserve £000 £000
Balance brought forward {11,665) 1,596
Gainsflosses) on disposal of investments 6,257 (71
Movement in fair value of nvestments 11,298 {10,447)
Realised gainsAlosses) on dervative instruments 1,470 (2,399)
Unrealised (losses)gains on derivative instruments (328) 567
Exchange gain on currency transactions 442 10
Managerent fee allocated to capital (606) (545)
Performance fee allocated to capital (1.211) -
Special dividends allocated to capital 140 -
Interest payable allocated to capnal (135) (59
Overseas tax on speaal dvidends allocated to capial (21} -
Transaction costs incurred on acguisitions of investments (472} (317)
Balance at 30 Septernber (5,169} {11,665)
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21 Revenue reserve £°000 £'600
Balance brought forward 10,730 10,481
Net revenue return for the year after tax 2,998 3,51
Net dividends paid (note 10) (3,082} (3.262)
Balance at 30 September 10,646 10,730

The revenue reserve represents the amount of the Company's reserves which are distnbutable by way of dwidend

22 Net asset value per ordinary share

The NAV per ordinary share 1s based on the net assets attributable to the ordinary shares of £115,431,000
{2011 £103,913,000} and on 16,919,919 {2011 17,917,040} shares in issue on 30 September 2012, excluding treasury
shares

23 Capital commitments and contingent liahbilities

Capital commitments
There were no capital commitments as at 30 September 2012 (2011 nil)

Contingent hatnlities
There were no contingent habilities as at 30 September 2012 (2011 nil)

24 Reconclhatton of return before finance costs and 2012 201
taxation to net cash inflow from operating activities £000 £000

Net return befare finance costs and taxation 20,480 (9,160}

Stock dividends (58) {125)
(GainsYlosses on wnvestments held at fair value {17,083) 10,835
{Gains¥losses on denvative instruments (1,142) 1,832

Other currency gains {442) (10}
Decreasef{increase) n accrued incorme 1 {1
Decrease tn prepayments and other debtors 72 1,514
Increasef{decrease) in accrued expenses {excluding interest) 1,303 (82)

Tax deducted at source from tnvestment income {468) (511)

Net cash inflow from operating actvities 2,663 4,292

At At

30 September £xchange | 30 September

201 Cash flow gamn 2012

25 Analysis of changes in debt £.000 £000 £000 £°000
Cash at bank and held at broker 6,766 (434) 442 6,774

Net cash at 30 September 6,766 {434) 442 6,774
Bank overdraft {2,579) (13,793} - {16,372)
Net cash/{debt} at 30 September 4,187 (14,227} 442 {9,598)




44

Henderson European Focus Trust plc Annual Repart and Financial Statements 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

26

Related party transactions

During the year £2,019,000 (including a performance fee of £1,211,000) was payable to Henderson for the provision of
services to the Company (2011 £726,000) At the balance sheet date, management fees totalling £213,000 (2011
£136,000) and the performance fee of £1,211,000 (2011 rul) were accrued to be payable to Henderson

Henderson also provides the Company with sales and marketing services The total fee payable for these services for the
year ended 30 September 2012 {excluding VAT) amounted to £33,000 (2011 nil) At 30 September 2012 £10,000 was
outstanding (2011 nif)

The compensation payable to key management personnel compnsed £96,000 (2011 £82,000) pad by the Company to
the Directors in respect of services to the Company as shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 24 The
Company has no employees
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Independent Auditor’s Report |

to the Members of Henderson European Focus Trust plc

We have audited the financial statements of Henderson
European Focus Trust plc for the year ended 30 September
2012 which comprise the Incorme Statement, the
Reconcihation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds, the
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the related
notes The financial reporting framework that has been
apphed in their preparation 1s applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a
body, i1 accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companmes Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company's members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibdity to anyone other than
the Company and the Company’s members as a bady, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page 23, the Drrectors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibility 15 to aucdht and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financal statements
A descniption of the scope of an audit of financial
statements 15 provided on the APB's website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private ¢fm

Opinion on financaal statements
In our opinion the financal statements

® give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s
affairs as at 30 September 2012 and of its return for the
year then ended,

@ have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

@ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006

Opimion on other matters prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006
In our opimon

@ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, and

e the information given in the Report of the Directors for the
financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 15 consistent with the financial staternents

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if, 10 our opinion

@ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or
returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

o the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

o certain disclosures of Drrectors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made, or

® we have not recewved all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules, we are required to review

® the Directors’ statement, set out on page 14, in relation to
going concern,

e the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to the Company’s compliance with the mne provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance Code speafied for our
review, and

& certain elernents of the report to the shareholders by the
Board on Directors’ remuneration

M T e Ue

Julian Bartlett (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditors, Chartered Accountants
London

5 December 2012




a6

Glossary of Terms

Gearing (leverage)

The geanng percentage reflects the amount of borrowings
{1 e bank loans or overdrafts) the Company has used to
invest 1n the market This figure Indicates the extra amount
by which shareholders’ funds would move if the Company's
investments were to nise or fall

This 15 calculated by dwiding total assets less cash, before
deducting borrowings and prior charges, by net assets,
expressed as a percentage

Investment trusts

Investment trusts are public imited companies, hsted on the
Londan Stock Exchange, which prowide shareholders with a
professionally managed portfolio of investmenis Investment
trusts are exempt from tax on the capital gains ansing on their
Investments subject to meeting certain critenia Income, net of
expenses and tax, is substantiatly distributed to sharehalders

Market capitalisation
The market value of a company as calculated by multiplying the
mid-market price per share by the number of shares in issue

Liquidity

In the context of the hquidity of shares in the stock market, this
refers to the availabiity of buyers in the market for the share in
question Where the market in a particular share is described as
hquid, that share will be in demand and holders wishing to sell
therr shares should find ready buyers Conversely, where the
market in a share i1s ihquid the difficulty of finding a buyer will
tend to depress the price that might be negotiated for a sale
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Net asset value (“NAV") per ordinary share

The value of the Company's assets {| e investments and cash
held} less any liabilities {1 @ bank borrowings} for which the
Campany 15 responsible, divided by the number of shares in
issue The aggregate NAV 1s also referred to as shareholders’
funds on the Balance Sheet The NAV is published daily

Ongoing charges

Ongoing charges are those expenses of a type which are lkely
to recur in the foreseeable future, whether ¢charged to capital
or revenue, and which relate to the operation of the
Company as a collective fund, excluding the costs of
acquisition or disposal of nvestments, financing charges and
gains or losses ansing on investments Ongoing charges are
based on actual costs incurred in the year as being the best
estimate of future costs

Premium/discount

The amount by which the market price per share of an
investment teust 1s either higher (premium) or lower
(discount) than the NAV per share, expressed as a percentage
of the NAV per share

Prior charge

The term given to either borrowings or any class of secunty
which, in a winding-up of the Company, ranks ahead of the final
beneficiary of surplus assets, usually ordinary or capital shares

Total return

This 1s the return on the share price or NAV taking into
account both the nse and fall of share prices and the
dividends paid to shareholders Any dividends receved by a
shareholder are assumed to have been reinvested in either
additional shares (for share price total return} or the
Company’s assets (for NAV total return)
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General Shareholder Information

Release of results
Half year results are announced in May Full year results are
announced in December

Annual general meeting
The AGM 15 held in London in January

BACS

Dwvidends can be paid to shareholders by means of BACS
(Bankers’ Automated Clearing Services), mandate forms for
this purpose are available from the registrar Alternatively,
shareholders can write to the registrar (the address 1s gqiven on
page 48} to give their instructions, these must include the
bank account number, the bank account title and the sort
code of the bank to which payments are to be made

Disability Act

Copres of this report and other documents 1ssued by the
Company are avalable from the Secretary If needed, copies
can be made available in a variety of formats, including Bralle,
audio tape or larger type as approprate

You can contact the registrar, Equinii bimited, which has
installed textphones to allow speech and heanng impaired
people who have theirr own textphone to contact them
drrectly, without the need for an intermediate operator by
dralling 0871 384 2457 Specially trained operators are
avaiable during normal business hours to answer queries via
this service

Alternatively, if you prefer to go through a ‘typetalk’ operator
(provided by the Royal National Institute for Deaf People) dial
18001 followed by the number you wish to dial

ISA
The Company intends to continue to manage its affairs in order
to qualify as an eligible investment for a stocks and shares ISA

Share price histings

The market price of the Company’s ordinary shares 15
published daily in The Financral Times, which also shows
figures for the estimated net asset value (“"NAV") per share
and discount

Performance details/share price information

Details of the Company's share pnce and NAV per share
can be found on the website The Company’s NAV 1s
published daily

Shareholder details

Shareholders who hold their shares in certificated form can
check their shareholding wath the registrar, Equiniti Limited,
via www egquiniti com Please note that to gain access to
your details on the Equiniti site you will need the holder
reference number shown on your share certificate

ISIN/SEDOL number

The 1SIN code/SEDOL {Stock Exchange Dally Cfficial List)
number of the Company’s shares 15 GBO005268858 The
mnemonic¢ code 1s HEFT

Nominee share code

Where notification has been prowided in advance, the
Company will arrange for copies of shareholder
communications to be provided to the operators of nominee
accounts Nominee investors may attend general meetings
and speak at them when invited to do so by the Chawrman

Investors via Halifax Share Dealing recewve all shareholder
communications A voting instruction form i1s provided to
facilitate voting at general meetings of the Company

Website
Further information on the Company can be found at www.
hendersoneurcpeanfocus.com

Warning to Sharcholders

regarding the Company.

telephone number provided on page 48

Shareholders should be wary of unsoliated telephone calls or correspondence concerning the Company and
offering investment advice, offers to buy shares at a discount or free company reports.

It 1s extremely unhkely that Henderson European Focus Trust pic, its Manager (Henderson Global Investors
Limited) or its registrar (Equiniti Limited) would make unsoliated telephone calls to shareholders in the event
that the Company or its advisers did make unsoliated calls, shareholders would never be asked to confirm their
personal details and such calls would relate only to offical documentation already arculated to shareholders
and never be in respect of offering investment advice or unpublished investment or finanaal information

If you are in any doubt about the veracity of an unsolicited phone call, please call the Secretary on the
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Corporate Information

Manager Registrar
Henderson Global Investors Limited, authornsed and regulated  Equimiti Limited
by the Financial Services Authonty Aspect House
Portfoho Manager John Bennett Spencer Road
Lancing
Secretary West Sussex BN99 6DA
Henderson Secretarial Services Limited, Telephone 0871 384 2457

be Fish ACIS
represented by Debbie fis Calls to this number cost 8p per minute from a BT landline

Registered number Other providers’ costs may vary Lings are open830am to
Registered as an investment company in England and Wales 530 pm, Monday to Fnday

No 427958 independent auditors

Registered office Grant Thornton UK LLP

201 Bishopsgate 30 Finsbury Square

London EC2M 3AE London EC2P 2YU

Telephone 020 7818 1818
Email help@henderson com

Stockbrokers
Winterflood Secunties
www hendersoneuropeanfocus com

The Atrrum Building
Cannon Bridge

25 Dowgate Hill

London EC4R 2GA

L
London
ﬁ Stock Exchange
al C LISTED

The Association of PREMIUM a
Investment Companies

Keeping up to date with Henderson European Focus
Trust plc
Website
For more information about Hendersen European Focus Trust

plc, wisit the website at www hendersoneuropeanfocus com  5¢an the QR code or use this
short URL to register for HGi

HG hitp./#HGs calgkh

HG1 15 a content platform provided by Henderson that offers a

new level of onhine personalisation where you can "follow” Follow us on Twitter
mvestment experts, topics and the trusts that are of interest To get the latest updates follow us
to you By creating your HG1 profile you wll be updated on Twatter @HGITrusts

regularly on the topics that interest you most, bringing you
closer to Henderson's investment expertise
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